
AGENDA 
RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 

CLOSED SESSION - 5:30 P.M. 
REGULAR MEETING - 6:30 P.M. 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 20,2016 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
675 WILDWOOD AVENUE 

WELCOME . .. By your presence in the City Council Chambers, you are participating in the process of 
representative government Copies of this ogenda, staff reports and other material available to the City 
Council are available at the City Clerk's office in City Hal/, 675 Wildwood Avenue. Your City Government 
welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend and participate in Rio Dell City Council meetings often. 

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact the Office of the City Clerk at (707) 764-3532. Notification 48 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility to the meeting. 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

8. ROLLCALL 

C. ANNOUNCEMENT OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION AS 
FOLLOWS: 

1) 2016/0920.01 - Conference with Labor Neeotiator - City Manaeer 
Concerning Labor Negotiations with Rio Dell Employees 
Association, Rio Dell Police Officers Association, and all 
Contract Employees (Pursuant to Gov't Code §54957.6) 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 

E. RECESS INTO CLOSED SESSION 

F. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION - 6:30 P.M. 

G. ORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

H. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

I. CEREMONIAL MATTERS 



J. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agendo and over 
which the Council has jurisdiction. As such, a dialogue with the Council or staffis not intended. Items 
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda may be placed on the next regular agenda for 
consideration if the Council directs, unless afinding is made by at least 2/3rds o/the Council that the 
item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgency nature requiring immediate action. 
Please limit comments to a maximum of3 minutes. 

K. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Consent Calendar adopting the printed recommended Cauncil action will be enacted with one vote. 
The Mayor will first ask the staff, the public, and the Council embers if there is anyone who wishes to 
address any matter on the Consent Calendar. The matters removed from the Consent Calendar will be 
considered individually in the next section, "SPECIAL CALL ITEMS". 

1) 2016/0920.02 - Approve Minutes of the September 6, 2016 Regular Meeting 
(ACTION) 1 

2) 2016/0920.03 - Check Register for August 2016 (RECEIVE & FILE) 27 

L. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 

M. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/STUDY SESSIONS 

N. SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 

1) 2016/0920.04 - Authorize staff to sign Funding Agreement with SWRC8, 
Issue Notice of Award, Issue Notice to Proceed and Execute 
Construction Management Contract with GHD for the 
Metropolitan Wells Project (DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE 
ACTION) 31 

2) 2016/0920.05 - Update on Downtown Parking Lot Improvements 
(DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 67 

3) 2016/0920.06 - Bottled Water Proposal from Councilmember Thompson 
(DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 68 



'I 
4) 2016/0920.07 - Authorize staff to send out a Request for Proposal (RFP) 

Related to the Replacement of the Waterline along Old 
Ranch Road (DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 78 

O. ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1) 2016/0920.08 - Second Reading (by title only)and Adoption of Ordinance 
No. 347-2016 amending Section 17.30.020, Accessory Uses 
and Buildings of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) to 
establish maximum building heights and floor areas based 
on the size of the parcel and to allow for exceptions by the 
Planning Commission when certain findings can be made 
(DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 93 

2) 2016/0920.09 - Second Reading (by title only) and Adoption of Ordinance 
No. 349-2016 amending Chapter 17.40 of the Rio Dell 
Municipal Code (RDMC) to accurately reflect referenced 
sections which were recently amended 
(DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 101 

P. REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

Q. COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS 

R. ADJOURNMENT 

The next regular City Cauncil meeting is scheduled far 
Tuesday, October 4, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. 



RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 
MINUTES 

The closed sessionlregular meeting of the Rio Dell City Council was called to 
order at 5:30 pm by Mayor Wilson. 

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Wilson, Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, 
Council members Garnes, Marks, and Thompson 

Others Present: City Manager Knopp, Finance Director Woodcox, 
Community Development Director Caldwell, Clerk 
Dunham, and City Attorney Gans 

Absent: Chief of Police Hill, Water/Roadways 
Superintendent Jensen, and Wastewater 
Superintendent Trainee Yaple (excused) 

ANNOUNCEMENT OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Conference with Labor Negotiator - City Manager - Concerning Labor 
Negotiations with Rio Dell Employees Association, Rio Dell Police Officers 
Association, and all Contract Employees 
The Council recessed into closed session at 5:30 p.m. with the City Manager and 
City Attorney to discuss labor negotiations as posted. 

The Council reconvened into open session at 6:30 p.m. 

Mayor Wilson announced there was no reportable action taken in closed session. 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
None 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Motion was made by Garnes/Johnson to approve the consent calendar including 
approval of minutes of the August 16, 2016 regular meeting. Motion carried 5-0. 

1 



SEPTEMBER 6,2016 MINUTES 
Page 2 

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/STUDY SESSIONS 

Presentation on Measure'S' Related to Commercial Marijuana Cultivation Taxes 
in the Unincorporated Areas of Humboldt County - (CAO Amy Nilsen and 
Undersheriff Bill Honsell 
City Manager Knopp stated that the County has requested to come and give a 
presentation on Measure'S', a proposed commercial marijuana cultivation tax. 
He introduced County CAO Amy Nilsen and stated that Undersheriff Bill Honsel 
was unable to attend this evening. 

Ms. Nilsen provided a power point presentation and explained the proposed 
cultivation measure, if enacted by voters, will provide a source of local funding to 
help maintain local essential county services that cannot be taken by the state. 
She noted that the state has continually taken money from the county (over $325 
million). 

She said the funding will help enforce laws that require marijuana growers to 
protect natural areas and waterways; maintain services for victims of child abuse; 
maintain rural ambulance service; maintain mental health services for children 
and families; provide emergency communications for medical and first 
responders; and help to clean up environmentally damaged marijuana farms. 

She said Measure'S' would also provide additional funding to address issues 
related to hard drugs and narcotics like meth and heroin which continues to be a 
serious problem in Humboldt County. 

The Measure if enacted, will tax commercial marijuana growers a rate of $1 - $3 
per square foot, based on the type of commercial marijuana grow. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson commented that he didn't hear the words "medicinal" 
or "medical marijuana" used and is assuming that if the statewide initiative 
passes, the tax will also apply to recreational marijuana. He asked if the county 
has estimated the revenue to be generated for both medical and recreational 
marijuana. 

2 



SEPTEMBER 6,2016 MINUTES 
Page 3 

Ms. Nilsen explained that it is a commercial cultivation tax measure so will apply 
to both medicinal and recreational marijuana. She said the county estimate of 
$7.3 million is based on 400 permits for commercial medical marijuana but they 
have not estimated the revenue for recreational marijuana since it is still not legal 
at this point. 

Mayor Wilson asked how they are going to facilitate making sure everyone pays 
their fair share. 

Ms. Nilsen said they are hoping this tax gets placed on property tax bills and 
said they will be working with state advocates to have it assessed on property 
taxes based on the square footage of the cultivation indicated on the permit. 

Mayor Wilson commented that people have previously done this illegally and 
asked what the motivation is for them to become legal. He said he understands 
there are some growers that want to do it legally so they will pay taxes but there 
are also a large number of growers that won't. He said some of the small mom 
and pop operators feel if they log into the system, the government might take 
away the improvements they have if they don't renew each year with the 
Department of Justice because it is still considered illegal by the federal 
government. He asked again how they are going to insure everyone will pay 
their fair share. 

Ms. Nilsen explained that there are a couple of ways to do that. One way is that 
there is going to be an annual inspection of these grows or farms. She said as 
far as illegal grows, there should be funds, should the tax be enacted by the 
voters, to do some code enforcement activities that will identify those illegal 
grows. 

SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 

Consider Possible Elimination of Wildwood Ave. Sculpture Committee 
Community Development Director Caldwell provided a brief staff report and 
said as the Council is aware the city established a Sculpture Committee in 2014 
to review and approve potential applications for the placement of sculptures 
along the Wildwood Avenue corridor on the pedestals that were constructed as 
part of the Wildwood Avenue Enhancement Project. 

3 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 4 

He stated that one of the members of the committee, Cheryl Gatlin moved out of 
the area resulting in a vacancy on the committee. He said staff posted notices 
and advertised the vacancy in a number of city newsletters to solicit applicants 
without any success. As such, staff is asking the Council for direction regarding 
the possible elimination of the Wildwood Avenue Sculpture Committee and 
having the City Council responsible for reviewing and approving applications for 
the placement of sculptures. 

Councilmember Thompson asked how many members there are on the 
committee and suggested the idea of perhaps a smaller committee. 

Mayor Wilson stated that he doesn't have a problem putting the responsibility 
back in the hands of the City Council. 

Council member Marks said it would probably be a good idea until such time 
there is some type of activity. 

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson noted that when the city advertised for the vacancies 
on the Planning Commission there were some great applicants and said perhaps 
one of those citizens would be interested in serving on the committee. He said 
he would like to see the committee continue and to actually work on getting 
applications to get some sculptures out there. 

Community Development Director Caldwell commented that staff had hoped 
that members of the Eagle Prairie Arts District would display their art and one of 
the potential artists had expressed interest but unfortunately passed away. 

City Manager Knopp commented that staff has been continuing to pursue 
grants and actually has an inside track on a particular funding source to either 
purchase sculptures or provide an incentive for artists to construct something. 
He said staff anticipates submitting an official application around January 2017. 

Mayor Wilson suggested tabling the item at this point and continuing to solicit 
applications to fill the vacancy. 

4 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 5 

Council member Garnes asked if the intent of the committee is to sit back and 
wait for applications to come in then review them, or to actually reach out to the 
community to try and get applications. 

Community Development Director Caldwell said the intent of the committee is 
to basically just review the applications but with one of the members on the 
committee from the Eagle Prairie Arts District (EPAD), the hope was that he 
would be able to facilitate someone to participate; unfortunately that hasn't 
happened. 

The consensus of the Council was to get the committee together, get their 
feedback and report back to the Council. 

Update on Downtown Parking Lot Improvements 
City Manager Knopp provided a staff report including an update on the final 
work to be done on the city's downtown parking lot. He said the project started 
with the installation of the EV charging station and due to some ADA issues, 
some parking spaces were moved, the surface was sealed as well as the 
installation of some additional lighting. 

He said one of the last pieces of the project is the fencing on the north side of the 
lot and removing bump stops. The original idea was to install large planter boxes 
but in costing it out, staff discovered it would exceed the project budget. 

City Manager Knopp reviewed some basic fence designs and said that a solid 
board picket type fence might work but staff's concern is that it may be an 
attractant to graffiti and unless the fence was painted, it would be difficult to clean 
off. He noted there is $6,300 left in the budget in terms of improvements to the 
parking lot and that staff is recommending a split-rail type fence with two or 
possibly 3 rails with copper post tops like those on the city's electronic sign and 
the new chamber signs. He indicated with this option, the project can be 
completed on budget and said staff is asking for a consensus of the Council to 
move forward and bring the project to a conclusion as soon as possible. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson asked if the parcel had been surveyed to establish 
property comers. 

5 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 6 

City Manager Knopp stated that staff will USA the site before construction to 
identify the location of existing utilities and said the fence will be located next to a 
drainage pipe. He said the purpose of the fence is for aesthetics and will 
basically be connected to the existing fence at the back of the parcel. 

Councilmember Thompson mentioned the old growth redwood from the old 
water tank that the city has been trying to decide what to do with and said this 
may be a good place to utilize it. 

City Manager Knopp stated that staff could look into it as an option and noted 
that if the redwood was used for that purpose, the water fund would need to be 
reimbursed as it is a water fund asset. 

Mayor Wilson called for public comment on the proposed fence. 

Stephen Johnston commented that he works at the former BP Gas Station site 
next to the city parking lot and is able to monitor the people who use the EV 
charging station and suggested the Council consider using the money to have a 
comfort station (restroom) for people to have access to. 

Consensus of the Council was that staff takes an inventory of the redwood from 
the tank and reports back to the Council. 

Maritess Brady began addressing the Council regarding a complaint against the 
water department. 

Mayor Wilson informed Ms. Brady that this was not the appropriate time in 
which to address the council on matters not on the agenda and suggested she 
meet with the City Manager to discuss her complaint. He welcomed her to come 
back at the next meeting and address the Council during the Public Presentation 
portion of the meeting. 

Ms. Brady said she was told her complaint would fall on deaf ears if she filed a 
complaint with city staff and said she came to the Council because she has faith 
in them to listen to what she has to say. 

6 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 7 

Mayor Wilson said because Ms. Brady didn't understand the protocol for 
addressing the Council felt the Council should make an exception. The 
consensus of the Council was 4-1 to allow her to present her complaint at this 
time. 

Ms. Brady continued by stating that she returned home on September 2, 2016 
from a trip to the Philippines to find that her water was turned off. She said she 
came into the office and requested the water be turned back on. She said she 
was told by Hilda Talavera that she would need to pay the bill in full before it 
could be turned on. She said she came back at 12:30 p.m. and paid a total of 
$303.72 and was promised the water would be turned on by 3:00. She said it 
wasn't until today at 8:53 a.m. that the water was turned on and said she had to 
live in a house for four days without water. 

She said because of the 3-day weekend, staff should have followed up to make 
sure the issue was taken care of but didn't. 

Mayor Wilson apologized to Ms. Brady on behalf of the city and suggested she 
follow up with the City Manager the next day. 

Ms. Brady thanked the City Council and the City Manager and left the meeting. 

ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLICHEARINGS 

Introduction and First Reading (by title only) of Ordinance No. 348-2016 
Establishing Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Regulations. Section 
17.30.195 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROM C) 
Community Development Director Caldwell provided a staff report and said as 
the Council is aware; it appears the consensus of the Council is to locate all 
cannabis related activities to the north side of the river in the area known as the 
Sawmill Annexation area. He said at the August 16, 2016 regular meeting, the 
Council directed staff to return to this meeting with a new draft ordinance 
focusing on that specific area. 

He said in addition, Council member Thompson recommended a number of minor 
changes which were also incorporated into the new draft ordinance. He 

7 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 8 

continued with review of those changes and said other than restricting all 
cannabis related activity north of the river; the other changes are minor in nature. 

Staff further explained that pursuant to the Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROMC) 
Section 17.35.010, any changes to the proposed ordinance must be referred 
back to the Planning Commission for a report. As such, the changes were 
presented to the Planning Commission at their August 23,2016 regular meeting. 
Commissioner Angeloff had some concern about the language pertaining to 
background checks and disqualifying felonies but when it was explained that the 
language was taken straight out of the State's MCRSA, he was satisfied . 

Community Development Director Caldwell explained that procedurally, the 
regulations presented now are considered a new ordinance because the original 
Ordinance No. 342-2016 which is what the Planning Commission recommended 
was not approved by the City Council. 

Councilmember Thompson referred to page 7 of the ordinance under (e) 
"Stand a/one, independent Processing Facilities .. ... " and said he would 
either like to strike the words "stand alone" or add it to the definitions. 

Mayor Wilson pointed out that the proposed 'new' ordinance was 
numbered the same as the original ordinance; 342-2016. He then asked City 
Attorney Gans for clarification on why the ordinance is given a new number when 
it basically is the same ordinance. 

City Attorney Gans explained that in substance the ordinance appears to be the 
same. He said it's already gone through the Planning Commission hearing 
requirements and once the hearings are completed, it ultimately becomes the 
City Council's ordinance to adopt, amend or change as desired. The principal 
basis is that there's no real distinction between what is proposed now other than 
the Council's directed changes to the ordinance. He said the Planning 
Commission has already gone through this procedural process to review and 
hold hearings on the Ordinance. 

8 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 9 

Mayor Wilson referred to (9) on page 4 of the proposed ordinance related to the 
terminology regarding permitting and licensing and referred to the requirement of 
state licenses as they become due. He said in the April 12, 2016 Planning 
Commission minutes it states that cultivation and processing of cannabis shall 
not be allowed as a principally permitted use unless a Conditional Use Permit is 
first obtained from the city and the person engaged in such activity has obtained 
all state licenses and permits required by the applicable state licensing 
authorities. He said we now know that the state will not be issuing licenses until 
2018 so the language in the ordinance needs to clarify that. 

Community Development Director Caldwell explained that when this 
ordinance was first drafted, there was no State MMRSA and since that time, the 
regulations have been evolving. He said the state is now allowing jurisdictions to 
approve local operations without state licensing and noted that the County of 
Humboldt has approved 12 licenses to date and expect that number to go up as 
high as 2,000. 

Mayor Wilson commented that because of this evolution process, one of his 
concerns is that the city may be getting in too early on this. He said it is good to 
be on the cutting edge and in front of the pack but it also makes you the Ginny 
Pig so to speak. He noted that one or two changes in the verbiage can open the 
city up to success or failure. He said it is a tricky process and he doesn't want to 
tie up city resources on this one thing because there is a lot of other things that 
haven't been done as a city because of all the time that has already been spent 
on this issue. 

He brought up the subjects of release of liability, security deposits and bonds and 
said there doesn't seem to be a lot of information on those subjects and that he 
would like to see some type of security bonds required starting at $2 million with 
the city having the ability to secure in the event there is some kind of 
environmental damage and clean-up is needed. 

City Attorney Gans explained that his office evaluated that issue and said the 
concern he has and wants the Council to be fully aware of, is that constitutional 
limitations exist on the scope and extent of impact fees that can be imposed on 
proposed developments. He said regarding the concept of a bond, there must be 

9 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 10 

a reasonable nexus between the impacts of the proposed project and the fee 
imposed in connection with that project. 

He said his concern is in trying to find some legal authority to impose some form 
of bond or remediation bond on the project applicant. He noted that assuming 
that these activities all take place on private property, which he believes is the 
case, and unless the city is contemplating private activities on public property 
which would give rise to additional mechanisms to impose fees, there really isn't 
a nexus. 

He also pointed out that the city wouldn't typically have remedial obligation for 
some environmental condition that the property owner or user may create. 
However, if there was an impact to any public infrastructure or systems such as 
water or sewer, that may provide some basis to create a nexus that would pass 
the constitutional test to go ahead and impose something on the developer. 
He pointed out that in this circumstance the same rules for impact fees would 
apply to a cannabis developer as any other developer. He said a General 
Obligation Bond, especially one of that nature, would be difficult to find the legal 
basis to impose it. 

Mayor Wilson asked who would be responsible for cleanup of toxic waste 
should it occur and the business was bankrupt. 

City Attorney Gans explained that typically the public entity is not responsible 
for remediation of environmental cleanup on private property and the property 
often sits dormant until there is some form of redevelopment or activity that 
triggers remediation. He noted that the state of California actually abates and 
liens properties and the city can do that as well. He said if an operator creates 
an issue that constitutes a public nuisance or discharges into the city's storm 
drainage system, the city can abate the problem under the city's current nuisance 
ordinance and pass all the costs and charges onto the property owner under the 
RDMC as well as state law. 

He noted that would be one methodology but there would need to be a tight 
nexus between whatever the anticipated problems is that this new business is 

10 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 11 

going to generate to impose as an impact fee as some form of pre-funded 
remediation fee. 

Mayor Wilson asked if this is something that as he researches, the Planning 
Commission can address under the Conditional Use Permit process. 

City Attorney Gans explained that he can still look into that but that there are a 
number of other fees that can directly be imposed such as a general 
administration and processing fee or annual operating fees. He said there are 
some distinctions between the form of fees the city can impose on any general 
development then those that leads over into whether there is a reasonable nexus 
to impose as an impact fee. He said general administration fees and processing 
fees are considered types of fees that are routinely charged and can be imposed 
legally. He said another example is a lighting improvement fee which is 
something that is definitely needed for security so there would be an easy nexus 
to draw between the proposed activity and the need for additional lighting for 
security in that area. He said if the city has plans to upgrade or improve lighting 
in connection with permitting these activities in that area, the city can certainly 
pass that fee onto the developer. 

Mayor Wilson asked when those fees will be incorporated into the ordinance. 

Community Development Director Caldwell indicated that those fees are 
adopted by resolution rather than ordinance. 

Mayor Wilson then referred to (5) Penalties and Enforcement as set forth in 
Section 17.40.020 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) and said it refers to 
misdemeanors and a maximum fine of $1,000. and basically motivates someone 
to operate illegally because of the amount of the fine. He said what he would like 
to see from perhaps other jurisdictions is language that spells out what it is to be 
confiscated or how the violators are fined specifically whether it is by the plant or 
some other means. He noted that laws generally keep people honest so there 
needs to be enough strength in the penalties to make sure they are. 

'1 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 12 

Community Development Director Caldwell clarified that the fine is actually 
$1,000 for each day the violation occurs. He then provided an example of an 
extraction facility that produces 1 million grams annually at the wholesale price of 
$14 or $15 a gram. He said that means it is a $14 - $15 million operation and he 
would think that those entrepreneurs would want to comply with the letter of the 
law. He said they are not going to risk that type of revenue by non-compliance 
and would not be making application to the city if they didn't want to be so call 
"good actors." He pointed out that these are people who want to come to the city 
and play by the rules. The people the Mayor is referring to are the people who 
are not going to apply for permits and are going to be under the trees operating 
diesel grows and having hash labs in their barns. As such, he said he doesn't 
see that being an issue. He said the city has two perspective entrepreneurs 
interested in coming to the city and they want to go through the process and be 
legal. 

Mayor Wilson stated that he wants as many safeguards in the ordinance as 
possible then moved onto page 11 of the ordinance under (c) Site Plan with 
regard to the 1,000 foot distance from the cultivation area to schools. He said he 
is aware there are no schools in that area at this time but that the county added 
language under Section 55.4.1 to include schools, school bus stops, churches or 
other places of religious worship, and tribal lands. 

Community Development Director Caldwell commented that he believes the 
county's ordinance only relates to cultivation and dispensaries. 

Mayor Wilson stated that he would like it to apply to all cannabis related 
activities in Rio Dell as stated under 55.4.1 of the county's regulations. 

He said he would also like to include in the definitions, a description of the 
Sawmill Annexation area including assessor parcel numbers for clarity. He noted 
that the city of Arcata went through a very lengthy process where they created a 
map with buffers around certain areas and it pretty much wiped out the entire city 
where cannabis activities are allowed. He said if the same or similar thing was 
done for Rio Dell it would essentially eliminate activities on this side of the river. 
He said he would like this done so in the event future city councils can't undo 
what this council does by a simple majority vote. If it's included in the ordinance, 
it will make it harder to change because an applicant would have to come and 

12 



SEPTEMBER 6,2016 MINUTES 
Page 13 

make their case before the Council. He said again, this is just another assurance 
to keep activities north of the river. 

Community Development Director Caldwell noted that staff can certainly do 
that as well as include a map of the area that delineates the Sawmill Annexation 
area. 

Mayor Wilson then addressed requirements for water and wastewater and 
suggested language pertaining to water shortage or drought conditions to place 
water resource priorities on residential use. He said he read where one cannabis 
operation uses 60,000 gallon of water a day so in a drought situation when 
residents are limited to 50 gallons a day it becomes a question as to who gets 
restricted first; residents or commercial users. He also suggested language be 
added to state that trucking water shall be allowed during a drought provided it is 
properly stored and not just during emergencies; as well as language to protect 
residents use of water during a drought. 

Community Development Director Caldwell commented that wells could be 
drilled in that area but he doesn't believe they would achieve the required flows 
for fire hydrants so they would likely need to extend the city's main water line 
along Northwestern Ave. 

Mayor Wilson said related to odors, it was discussed at the Planning 
Commission meeting on August 23'd that staff indicated that odor wouldn't be a 
problem with open-roof greenhouses because there were no neighbors. He 
expressed concern that there may be other businesses that are not cannabis 
related businesses and also there are a few residences in that area that are out 
of city limits that may be affected. He said odors do not need to simply be 
minimized but actually eliminated and staff needs to make sure of it rather than 
just talk about it. 

Also, it needs to be clarified in the ordinance that the city has no wastewater 
services at the Sawmill Annexation area so perspective property owners and 
business entrepreneurs know that up front. 

Community Development Director Caldwell commented that staff has already 
had that conversation with the perspective developers. 

13 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 14 

Mayor Wilson said the last and probably the biggest thing to him is the effective 
date of the ordinance. He said at the June 21, 2016 meeting it was stated that 
the ordinance would only become effective with passage of a tax measure and 
he would like language added to say that the ordinance is only effective if a tax 
measure is approved by the electorate; if not, staff could start processing permits 
without any tax in place. 

Community Development Director Caldwell agreed and said that is why staff 
was disappointed when the tax measure was not placed on the November ballot. 

Mayor Wilson stated that his disappointment is that the ordinance didn't start by 
restricting cannabis related activities north of the river. 

City Manager Knopp stated that he wanted to talk a little bit about the schedule 
for potential adoption of the ordinance. He said as discussed before, approval of 
a land use ordinance requires a simple majority vote of the council whereas; the 
tax which is a separate issue ultimately requires a 4/5 vote of the council. 

He said on the topic of fees, they are generally to recover verifiable city costs; not 
something to generate money simply to place toward economic incentives or 
diversify the city's revenue base. 

He commented that one example of a fee the city attorney mentioned was a 
lighting fee to increase lighting on Northwestern Ave. He said it isn't something 
that actually generates revenue for the city but helps to absorb and mitigate the 
costs the city could be paying to add additional lighting for security which is 
beneficial both for the project and the city. 

In terms of cleaning up and making sure the city is able to enforce environmental 
laws and regulations, it is to protect the health and safety of the public and also 
these parcels. He said the current development proposals on the table will clean 
up legacy issues with chemicals on site that are far more noxious than some of 
the chemicals related to cannabis activities. He noted there is still a large 
amount of contaminated dirt (Brownfields site) that needs to be removed and 
trucked away and taken to special landfills and treated which is very costly. 

14 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 15 

He noted that the property owner, Dennis Wendt had talked about a potential 
sale of one of the parcels when the ordinance was voted down stating that his 
plan was to use part of the proceeds to do some of that clean up. He pointed out 
that probably the best method in terms of cleaning up these parcels is through 
development and economic growth. He noted that the developers basically pick 
up the tab and clean up those legacy issues and remove them for good which is 
single handedly the biggest boom for environmental and public health (other than 
taking care of 255 Wildwood Ave. which is another Brownfields site). 

City Manager Knopp stated that the other important issue is the timeline for 
potential adoption of the ordinance. He said he understands there is a good 
possibility of having three votes in moving forward on the land use ordinance 
however; Mayor Pro Tem Johnson will not be available during the next two 
regular meetings. As such staff is recommending the ordinance be agenized for 
its second reading and potential adoption for the regular meeting of October 18, 
2016. 

In the meantime staff will be working on the fees in order to be able to come up 
with verifiable costs and make a good solid recommendation to the City Council. 
He pointed out that these fees are clearly an interim solution and simply a way to 
mitigate the impact to the city but no matter what the Council does and even if 
they decide to ban commercial cannabis activities, the city is still going to be left 
with the illegal trade and those associated costs. He said the only solution is to 
bring revenue into the city to help attract other tax paying businesses to help 
diversify the city's revenue stream; not just cannabis related businesses. Again, 
the only way to be able to do this is with a cannabis tax. 

City Attorney Gans pointed out that two additional revIsions were 
recommended; one of which was the Mayor's recommendation to define the 
Sawmill Annexation area for clarity. 

He said the ordinance should probably also include some language and a 
provision on Revocation by Operation of Law meaning that the law is in flux 
enough at this juncture but theoretically based on some change at the state or 
federal level something could be deemed illegal in the future. He advised the 
Council to recite some general "revocation by operation of law" language should 
the permit be deemed to be in violation of state law or federal mandate. 

15 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 16 

Basically the ordinance should anticipate any potential changes in state or 
federal law. 

City Attorney Gans advised the Council to open public comment then entertain 
a motion to conduct the first reading of Ordinance No. 348-2016 and continue the 
second reading and potential adoption to the October 18, 2016 regular meeting 
provided there are no further comments by the Council. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson stated that he finds no fault with the ordinance 
becoming effective 30 days after its approval under Section 4 as presented and 
said he would like that language to stay. He said there are people who have 
been coming to meetings for months that want to invest in our city and the 
Council needs to lead a clear path for them to be able to do that whether the city 
gets a tax dollar out of it or not. He added that they are willing to spend millions 
of dollars at a defunct sawmill site and bring in lots of employment for the city. 
They want to run a clean operation and the city should allow then to do that 
regardless if the city gets a buck out of it or not. 

Mayor Wilson commented that in the original process the Council was trying to 
figure out how to repair streets and repair the city's general fund. Now the idea is 
to approve an ordinance and eventually down the road in 2017 or 2018 it would 
still have to be approved as a tax measure by the citizens of Rio Dell. He said if 
that were to fail, businesses would be allowed to continue to operate and all the 
money Rio Dell would receive would be from someone working over there, a 
business license fee, or any kind of administrative fees. He said that is 
irresponsible to what the City Council goal is. Also, to say that it is the only way 
to fix our city because it is the only door knocking and the income that's going to 
come in the form of $2.7 million has been changed to tens of thousands of 
dollars in the form of revenue in the City's general fund. He said that to him, 
doesn't warrant the whole process. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson commented that the city stands at losing investors if 
the Council doesn't act and allow them to build now. 

Mayor Wilson said there needs to be other options other than the cannabis 
industry and if we are basing the city's economy on a recreational drug, we need 
to ask ourselves if this is what we want for Rio Dell. He added if the city loses 

16 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 17 

investors because they can't get rich off of this boom and bust if it doesn't 
happen now then that's the way it is but he wants the activities tied to a tax. 

Councilmember Garnes pointed out that the issue of the tax measure is a moot 
point since it's off the table until 2017 or 2018. She said what the Council is 
really talking about is businesses wanting to come to Rio Dell and invest in our 
city. She added that the Council has thrown insults to these investors and 
accused them of not telling the truth and has basically said everything but 
"welcome to Rio Dell, we want your business as long as you run an honest 
business." She pointed out that no one is going after the Dollar General for 
anything or any item they sell. 

She said to say that we don't want these businesses when they have money to 
invest and to merely keep going back and forth is not right. She noted that these 
are business people and they don't have time to sit forever and wait for the 
Council to make up their mind. She said it is an insult to these gentlemen who 
have been here since December and to say "if you don't have the time to wait 
two more years to figure out what Rio Dell is going to do, then we don't want you" 
is offensive and an insult because they are simply trying to do business in the 
city. She said the bottom line is either they're going to be allowed or not but to 
keep dragging them along is wrong. Businesses are in business to make money 
and they can't make money sitting around waiting for months. She pointed out 
that there are other cities courting these gentlemen because they want to 
conduct business in a legal manner within the law. 

She added that the City Council hasn't spent nearly enough time talking about all 
the illegal grows and all those things everyone is so consumed with. The Council 
has however, taken time to do the legal thing and tossed all that legal jargon their 
way and they're not trying to do anything illegal but simply trying to come into the 
city, follow the law and help the city and yes help themselves because that's 
capitalism; that's what they're supposed to do. They invest, the city gets money 
and they get more which is no different than the Dollar General who makes bank 
and the city gets very little. She said that's just the way it works. She went on to 
say that the Council shouldn't just say no and tell these investors to sit and wait 
and the Council will get back to them in a couple of years and if they don't like it, 
they don't like us. She said if the Council is going to try and move forward with 
this they need to stop villainizing these people who are trying to come in and do 

17 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 18 

something positive for the city. They are trying to do something good and the city 
should give them the mechanism to do it if possible. 

She stated that all she is trying to say is that there are businesses interested in 
investing in Rio Dell and are trying to be downright upright and simply can't do 
anymore to prove to the city that they want to be good players. The City Council 
needs to give them the opportunity; it's no different than any other business at 
this point. She said because the tax measure is off the table at this point, all the 
Council can do is move forward with adoption of the ordinance. She said we 
have an ordinance and have investors and those two things should come 
together and for some reason this Council has pushed and fought and tried every 
way and every letter in the ordinance to push them away. She said she thinks 
the Council should look at the businesses and recognize that they are legal 
businesses trying to do the right thing and coming in to help the city. She said 
the Council should thank them for wanting to come to Rio Dell because the fact is 
that the city needs a little help. 

Councilmember Thompson said he has no desire to wait to connect the land 
use ordinance with a tax measure. He said the council had the opportunity at a 
prior meeting to do so and didn't so he is prepared to make a motion after 
hearing from the public. 

Community Development Director Caldwell commented that when the state 
issues their permits, those applicants that have their local licenses are given 
priority and that's why a lot of jurisdictions throughout the state in the last month 
or so have adopted ordinances. He noted that the state is limiting the number of 
permits for large grows and the number of permits for manufacturing facilities so 
it is in their best interest to get their local entitlement as soon as they can so they 
get cued up for the state license. He said these are $4 or $5 million projects so 
the city may not be getting the taxes estimated earlier but certainly the property 
tax is going to increase. He said because of the scale of the project, it's going to 
take them months and months once they get their drawings in and construction is 
completed. He said at the very least, we're probably looking at late 2017 or 2018 
before they even get up and running. 

He pointed out that the city would have an opportunity to call a special election in 
June should the council decide to do that for the electorate to consider a 

18 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 19 

cannabis tax measure. He said it is important for these folks that are interested 
to get some clear direction because like Councilmember Garnes mentioned, they 
are being courted by other jurisdictions and he personally would hate to lose 
them. 

Mayor Wilson called for public comment on the proposed ordinance. 

Scott Wheeler, 121 Northwestern Ave. addressed the Council and said he 
moved to the area 15 years ago from Oregon and said if you're not from here this 
area is much like the twilight zone; the area has gone through massive changes 
since he moved here. 

He expressed concern about families and said he has a 5 year old and a 3 year 
old and there is a school bus stop at the north entrance of the Sawmill 
Annexation area near the former log deck. He said safety is also a concern if 
there is increased traffic. He said to turn and enter going south from the north 
entrance there's only the turn lane when coming from the north. He said coming 
out of there south will be a little dangerous. 

He stated that if this is part of the Rio Dell annexation, he doesn't see the Rio 
Dell Police Department patrol there and the amount of punks that hang out there 
has increased. The other concern was the potential decrease in property values. 
He commented that the only good thing he heard was maybe putting in more 
lights there for security. He also commented on crime, dangerous chemicals and 
possible explosions. He said he does understand the idea of pushing these 
activities out of the city so they are basically out of sight; out of mind. 

Michael Martino, principal investor of property at the Sawmill Annexation site 
stated that he thinks this is a great opportunity for Rio Dell. He said the Council 
brought up the issue of taxes not being part of this and said he would definitely 
get behind supporting a special election for a cannabis tax measure. He pointed 
out that when that passes the money can address illegal grow houses. Also, the 
city would perhaps be able to enroll in the PG&E program like Arcata did which 
pretty much eliminated most of the indoor grows because of the cost for 
electricity. 

19 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 20 

He said by passing this ordinance, the city will also be getting rid of the bad 
actors because there will be businesses that want to pay taxes and want to be 
regulated. He said he also wanted to point out that his project will be built as 
environmentally friendly as possible and will actually benefit the environment by 
paying to help remove contamination that already exists at that site. Also, solar 
will be installed on all rooftops and a rain collection system for drought seasons. 
He said his plan is to have processing facilities operated on site and in a legal 
manner including employing 24 hour security personnel. 

In closing he commented that he knows this activity will be a benefit to the 
community as more businesses mean more jobs and they will be employing local 
people who will shop here allowing the city to capture some of that money. He 
added that there is finally an opportunity for marijuana to be good for the 
community rather than a detriment and implored the City Council to adopt the 
Commercial Cannabis Land Use Ordinance as recommended . 

Tom Bertain addressed the Council and read a written statement opposing to 
the adoption of a Medical Cannabis Ordinance in the city of Rio Dell. (Included as 
Attachment 1 to these minutes). 

Julie Woodall stated that she thinks the land use ordinance as is should be 
passed with the addition of the "revocation by operation of law" provision as 
recommend by the City Attorney. She said she thinks the Council has gone 
about this for a long time and also thinks the Mayor is grandstanding and trying 
to delay any action until after the November election. She said now is a good 
time to take the first step to move forward with adoption of the ordinance. 

Peggy Patmore addressed the Council and said she started a business here 
and had to be licensed and it took her about two years which is not an 
unreasonable amount of time. She said Rio Dell is a place where people live, a 
place where families live, there is a wonderful school here, and there are families 
who have come here and invested in homes here to have a safe place for their 
kids to grow up and she thinks that is what's most important. She commented 
that the citizens and families that have businesses and are creating new 
businesses here are the building blocks of the city. She said it is important to 
insure that people who live here feel safe and are safe and encouraged the 
Council to not be hasty in their decision. She noted that she is not saying to not 

20 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 21 

do it but to make sure everything is in order. She said the City has come a long 
way the last few years and the city looks nice and that's what makes people feel 
comfortable. She commented that it has been done by the little people who have 
stepped up and volunteered to do things. She said the city does need people 
investing in the community but so far it's pretty much been the little people 
coming together to help make a difference. She said the Council shouldn't be 
afraid of losing investors; any investor knows it takes time. 

Dennis Wendt stated that he has not personally met Michael Martino but that he 
is interested in a 15 acre piece of his property in the Sawmill Annexation area. 
He said he has spent money every year on cleanup of the Brownfields site but 
without buyers he hasn't had time or money to get it completed. As far as Mr. 
Martino, he is probably in a better position to clean this up so his hope is that the 
Council will approve the first reading of the land use ordinance tonight and work 
toward getting some businesses established there. He noted that he had also 
listened to a presentation by Glen White and his investors and they are real 
business people. He said they naturally want to make money but they are also 
going to generate money for the city. He said he agrees with the cannabis tax 
and it is something that has to happen as the city is in dire straits. He said like 
Fortuna, redevelopment money has been taken away and the money just isn't 
there anymore. He said this is a way to take property and put in businesses that 
will benefit the city. 

There being no further public comment, Mayor Wilson asked for direction to 
proceed. 

City Manager Knopp explained the next step is to entertain a motion for the first 
reading of the ordinance and move the second reading and potential adoption to 
the regular meeting of October 18, 2016. 

Community Development Director Caldwell suggested the Mayor ask if 
anyone else would like to comment as there may be those who were not aware 
they had to fill out a speaker card. 

Mayor Wilson then called for further public comment. 

21 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 22 

Glen White addressed the Council and pointed out that time is of the essence as 
everything they need in order to move forward with their project is contingent 
upon the Council's action. He said there are investors backing the project which 
is a very high-tech professional facility. He said the design and engineering and 
all the permitting takes time and they anticipate it will probably be 2020 before 
they are in operation. He noted that the state will also have to come in and 
inspect. He said he and the other investors have put their backbone into this 
project and realistically it could take many months or even years for the city to 
see any revenue from this operation. He said their intent is for the production of 
medical cannabis and to market through medical facilities. If it eventually leads 
to recreational cannabis the city could generate a lot of money but wanted to 
point out that they are only looking at medical cannabis at this point. In closing, 
he reiterated that time is of the essence and urged the Council to move forward 
with adoption of the ordinance. 

There being no further public comment, the public comment period was closed. 

Councilmember Thompson stated that he has never spent so much time 
reading and studying a subject like this in his life. He said there are a lot of 
opposing statements on the issue but his goal from the beginning has that there 
be no outside grows in the city and to have everything north of the river in 
enclosed structures with no smell. He said the proposed ordinance does that. 

Motion was made by Thompson/Johnson to introduce and conduct the first 
reading (by title only) of Ordinance No. 348-2016 establishing Medical Cannabis 
Commercial Land Use Regulations, Section 17.30.195 of the Rio Dell Municipal 
Code with the inclusion of "revocation by operation of law" provisions 
recommended by the City Attorney and continue the consideration, approval and 
adoption of the proposed Ordinance to the regular meeting of October 18, 2016. 
Also, to direct staff and legal counsel to look at potential fees including 
establishing a lighting fee associated with any potential development at the 
Sawmill Annexation site. Motion carried 4-1; Councilmember Marks dissenting. 

Mayor Wilson called for a 5 minutes at this time, 8:30 p.m. at such time City 
Attorney Gans left the meeting. 

The meeting reconvened at 8:35 p.m. 

22 



SEPTEMBER 6,2016 MINUTES 
Page 23 

Introduction and First Readina (bv title only) of Ordinance No. 347-2016 
amending Section 17.30.020, Accessory Uses and Buildings of the Rio Dell 
Municipal Code (RDMC) to establish maximum building heights and floor areas 
based on the size of the parcel and to allow for exceptions by the Planning 
Commission when certain findings can be made 
Community Development Director Caldwell provided a staff report and said 
staff has been approached by a number of people regarding the construction of 
detached accessory structures, particularly with the 15 foot height limitation. He 
said the proposed amendment was presented to the Planning Commission for 
consideration at their August 23, 2016 regular meeting. He said staff had 
recommended a maximum building height on lots larger than 20,000 square feet 
of 26 feet however; the Planning Commission recommended it be limited to a 
height of 20 feet in residential zones provided there is an exception process to 
allow greater heights with a Use Permit. 

He stated that detached accessory buildings are allowed in residential zones, 
provided they are accessory to and subordinate to the principal use of the site 
and do not change the character of the principal residential use. 

He said with regard to maximum gross floor area, the Planning Commission is 
recommending 1,000 square feet on lots 20,000 square feet or less, and 1,500 
square feet on lots larger than 20,000 square feet. 

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson commented about a detached structure in the 
Grayland Heights subdivision (Paul Plum residence) and said it appears to be at 
least 26 feet in height. 

Community Development Director Caldwell noted the structure is a second 
dwelling unit and these provisions only apply to detached accessory structures; 
not second dwelling residential units. 

Mayor Wilson opened the public hearing to receive public input on the proposed 
ordinance. 

There was no public comment on the proposed ordinance however; Deborah 
Bare asked Councilmember Marks to apologize to Council member Garnes for 
rolling his eyes when she was speaking earlier. 

23 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 24 

There being no further public comment, the public hearing was closed. 

Motion was made by Johnson/Garnes to introduce and conduct first reading of 
Ordinance No. 347-2016 amending Section 17.30.020, Accessory Uses and 
Buildings of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROMC) to establish maximum building 
heights and floor areas based on the size of the parcel and to allow for 
exceptions by the Planning Commission when certain findings can be made and 
to continue the second reading and possible adoption to the September 20, 2016 
regular meeting. Motion carried 5-0. 

Introduction and Frist Reading (by title onlv) of Ordinance No. 349-2016 
amending Chapter 17.40 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROMC) to accurately 
reflect referenced sections which were recently amended 
Community Development Director Caldwell provided a brief staff report and 
explained this item involves a minor text amendment to clean up the language in 
the ROMC to accurately reflect referenced sections which were recently codified. 
He said in reviewing the Enforcement regulations staff discovered that Section 
17.40.030 referred to two sections that were recodified to new section numbers. 
He said the two referenced sections actually refer to "Adult Entertainment" and 
"Camping." As such, the section numbers were changed to accurately reflect the 
referenced sections under 17.40.030 under Penalty. 

Mayor Wilson opened the public hearing to receive public input on the proposed 
ordinance. There being no public comment, the public hearing was closed. 

Motion was made by JohnsonlThompson to introduce and conduct first reading 
(by title only) of Ordinance No. 349-2016 amending Chapter 17.40 of the Rio Dell 
Municipal Code (RCMC) to accurately reflect the referenced sections and 
continue consideration and adoption of the proposed Ordinance to the 
September 20,2016 regular meeting. Motion carried 5-0. 

REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

City Manager Knopp provided a written staff report (Included as attachment 2 to these 

minutes) including updates on the countywide Measure 'U'; the Habitat for 
Humanity parcel; the bid procedures for the 2016-2017 paving project; EV 
charging station; the river bar cleanup; Public Works staffing; code enforcement; 

24 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 25 

electronic sign; AB723; and announced the date for the Annual E-Waste Day as 
Saturday, September 17th. 

Finance Director Woodcox stated that she had nothing to report at this time. 

Community Development Director Caldwell reported on recent activities in the 
community development department and said the next regular Planning 
Commission meeting is scheduled for September 2ih at such time the 
Commission will be discussing provisions for cargo containers in residential 
zones. He said the Planning Commission discussed the issue briefly at the last 
meeting and seemed poised to recommend eliminating the use of cargo 
containers in residential zones. Staff suggested reaching out to those residents 
using cargo containers for storage and let them know this is going to be a topic of 
discussion so they can provide input. 

Other potential agenda items included a lot line adjustment for Dennis Wendt at 
the Sawmill Annexation site; Teasley Subdivision extension; the Safety Element 
and possibly the Noise Element. He noted that the Safety has not been updated 
since around 1972 and once that is updated all seven (7) of the elements of the 
General Plan will be current with state law. 

He also announced there will be a Bureau of Medical Marijuana Regulation 
(BMMR) workshop taking place in Redding on September 19th that he plans on 
attending as well as a Medical Cannabis Cultivation Program workshop in Eureka 
on September 15th put on by the California Department of Food & Agriculture at 
the Red Lion Hotel. 

Community Development Director Caldwell also reported that staff has been 
pretty busy on the Building Department side and issuing a lot of permits which is 
good. 

City Manager Knopp encouraged any councilmembers interested in attending 
the workshop in Eureka to do so if possible. 

COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS 

25 



SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 26 

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson announced that the League of California Cities 
quarterly meeting held in Arcata on August 19, 2016 was very well attended. He 
said there was a tour of four of the different areas where major investments have 
been made toward homeless efforts and between the City and private, 
investments have approached well over $10 million. He noted that Arcata is 
doing a lot to get the homeless into homes and the range of locations toured 
were from a trailer park to a converted motel to probably one of the biggest 
showcases which was the former P.C. Sacchi auto dealership. He said the 
bottom floor is now commercial and the top floors are residential and people now 
live there with a subsidy which is getting the homeless off the streets. 

He said that several people who toured the sites made comments that they were 
pretty unsympathetic to the homeless until they took the tour. He said if anyone 
wants to see what a city is doing successfully for the homeless they need to 
contact Arcata and they will be happy to show what they have done. 

He also reported that Councilmember Thompson will be attending the next 
HCAOG Board meeting in his absence and Mark Wheetly, his alternate will be 
attending the next LAFCo meeting. 

Mayor Wilson reported on his attendance at the last RREDC meeting and said 
there was a lot of good information related to biomass and what the CCA 
Program has available. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion was made by Johnson/Garnes to adjourn the meeting at 9:10 p.m. to the 
September 20,2016 regular meeting. Motion carried 5-0. 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 

Attest: 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk 

26 



Run: 09/15/2016 at 10:06 AM 
it"'_.... +1:"'- ~- ....... L ... 

1§{qit~~1!j~l!( 
JeIf(~~rBE;.GIS11LE8t. 

" .Mr. ~ .loll ,_ :.;.-

" 
I. .• 

.~ :~ 

General Checking - US Bank of California 

Check Date Vendor Description 

4982 8/04/2016 [6038] ACCURATE TERMITE & PEST SOLUTIONS MONTHLY RODENT PEST CONTROL @475HILLTOP 

4983 8/04/2016 [5235) ADVANTAGE FINANCIAL SERVICES DOCSTAR 3.12 SOFTWARE PACKAGE 

4984 8/04/2016 [3206] CALIFORNIA POLICE CHIEFS ASSOCIATION ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP DUES 7/2016 THROUGH 6/2017 

4985 8/04/2016 [2303] COAST CENTRAL CREDIT UNION POA DUES FOR PPE 7/ 22/16 

4986 8/04/2016 [4491) CODE PUBLISHING, INC RIO DElL MUNICIPAL CODE SUPPLEMENT UPDATE #6, 

4987 8/04/2016 [2928) DAN COLLINGS TREE SERVICE REMOVE WALNUT TREE @ 251 MONUMENT RD; REMOVE 

4988 8/04/2016 [2366] EEL RIVER DISPOSAL INC GARBAGE BAGS FOR JULY 2016 

4989 8/04/2016 [2396] FERNBRIDGE TRACTOR & EQUIPMENT CO., REPAIRS TO JD DIESEL FRONT RIDING MOWER 

4990 8/04/2016 [2407] FORBUSCO LUM8ER EIGHT 50# POST CRETE MIX 

4991 8/04/2016 [5808] GRAVES, DUSTIN CUSTOMER DEPOSIT REFUND 

4992 8/04/2016 [2501] HAJOCA CORPORATION TWO - DIXON PPB200 2 MPTXFEM POLYPRO TYPE B C 

4993 8/04/2016 [2447) HILFIKER PIPE CO. REPLACE PICNIC TABLE @ MEMORIAL PARK 

4994 8/04/2016 [2691] HUMBOLDT SENIOR RESOURCE TRANSPORTATION FUNDS FY 2016/2017 

4995 8/04/2016 [2465] HUMBOLDTTRANSIT AUTHORITY TDA MEMBER ASSESSMENT RTS FY 2016-2017 

4996 8/04/2016 [5689] MENDES SUPPLY COMPANY TWO CASES EACH TOILET TISSUE & PAPER TOWELS 

4997 8/04/2016 [2551) MIRANDA'S ANIMAL RESCUE ANIMAL CONTROL FOR JULY 2016 

4998 8/04/2016 [4908) MITCHELL BRI5S0 DELANEY & VRIEZE LEGAL SERVICES FOR JULY 2016 

4999 8/04/2016 [3484] NATIONAL METER & AUTOMATION, INC CABLE FOR HANDHElD METER READER 

5000 8/04/2016 [4393] NYLEX.net. Inc. MONTHLY MAINTENANCE FOR AUGUST 15, 2016 THROU 

5001 8/04/2016 [2659] RIO DElL PETTY CASH DISH SOAP; ClOROX; ENVELOPES FOR DROP BOX 

5002 8/04/2016 [2742) SCOTIA TRUE VALUE HARDWARE ONE - 1" BRASS TEE 

5003 8/04/2016 [4525] SHERLOCK RECORDS MGMT STORAGE SERVICE, BOX RETRIEVAL & ACCESSION FE 

5004 8/04/2016 [2710] STARPAGE PAGING SERVICE FOR AUGUST 2016 

~no5 8/04/2016 [2319] SUDDEN LINK COMMUNICATIONS MONTHLY BROADBAND SERVICE 8/1/16 - 8/31/16 

~ )06 8/04/2016 124811 VANTAGEPOINT TRAN~I'I'R Ar.;I'NT~_~nA~'" DrTIDr .. e .. T en" nnr" h., /. r 

Page 1 

~~ .... 

CheckJPallment 
245.00 

343.43 

331.00 

120.00 

2,742.75 

2,200.00 

377.15 

3,056.55 

47.17 

121.35 

30.28 

1,566.00 

6,500.00 

41,865.00 

247.14 

1,000.00 

6,998.74 

222.99 

1,120.00 

6.81 

15.17 

138.34 

12.95 

260.75 



Page 2 

General Checking - US Bank of California 
5007 8/04/2016 (2772) WENDT CONSTRUCTION, INC WATER LEAK REPAIRS ON IRELAND ST 902.50 

5008 8/04/2016 (2779) WILDWOOD SAW THREE STIHL PREMIUM TRIMMER LINES; 3 LB DIAMO 1,460.67 

5009 8/11/2016 (0576) 101 AUTO PARTS TWO HOSE CLAMPS 137.38 

5010 8/11/2016 (3975) AT&T · 5709 PHONE EXPENSES FOR JULY 2016 446.71 

5011 8/11/2016 (2293) CITY OF FORTUNA POLICE DISPATCH SERVICES FOR AUGUST 2016 2,075.00 

5012 8/11/2016 (2302) CLYDE'S TOWING, INC. VEHICLE ABATEMENT TOWING 600.00 

5013 8/11/2016 (5127) DELTA DENTAL DENTAL INSURANCE FOR SEPTEMBER 2016 1,920.00 

5014 8/11/2016 (3385) EVANS MECHANICAL (1) CLEAN ALL AC UNITS & CHANGE ALL FILTERS 596.61 

5015 8/11/2016 (2501) HAJOCA CORPORATION TAP BLIND FLNG; ELBOW; NUT BOLT KIT; FULL FAC 526.31 

5016 8/11/2016 (5932) HIGH ROCK CONSERVATION CAMP PROFESSIONAL SERVICE FOR BRUSH REMOVAL; EDWAR 2,100.00 

5017 8/11/2016 (5942) KEENAN & ASSOCIATES HEALTH INSURANCE FOR SEPTEMBER 2016 13,754.34 

5018 8/11/2016 (4360) MODERN MARKETING, INC DRUG TEST POUCHES 401.98 

5019 8/11/2016 (2569) NORTH COAST LABORATORIES, INC. WASTEWATER LAB TESTING FOR PERMIT RENEWAL· R 11,408.00 

5020 8/11/2016 (2603) PG&E UTILITY EXPENSES FOR JULY 2016 18,316.20 

5021 8/11/2016 (4338) QUILL CORPORATION XEROX BLACK & MAGENTA PHASER TONER CARTRIDGES 287.66 

5022 8/11/2016 (3032) RENDEZVOUS MUSIC & VENDING COFFEE 63.00 

5023 8/11/2016 (2664) ROGERS MACHINERY INC SERVICE REPAIRS TO SHOP COMPRESSOR 438.15 

S024 8/11/2016 (5380) SCOTI MOORE TRUCKING DBA SPRING TRUCKING/FREIGHT SERVICE; DUMP TRUCK/TRANSFER 776.39 

5025 8/11/2016 (2693) SHELTON'S AUTO LUBE FULL OIL CHANGE SERVICE FOR 2007 FORD CROWN V 57.06 

5026 8/11/2016 (2319) SUDDENLINK COMMUNICATIONS INTERNET SERVICE 8/10/16 • 9/9/16 134.95 

5027 8/11/2016 (6037) WELLS FARGO VENDOR FIN SERV XEROX COPIER PAYMENT FOR AUGUST 2016 482.13 

5028 8/17/2016 (5381) ALTERNATIVE BUSINESS CONCEPTS MONTHLY MAINTENANCE & COPY CHARGES FOR JULY 2 981.57 

5029 8/17/2016 (4295) AMBROSINI & SONS ELECTRIC,INC WIRE LED SIGN AT NORTH END OF TOWN 2,460.00 

5030 8/17/2016 (2237) BANK OF AMERICA BUSINESS CARD NITERIDER TECH LIGHTING· REPLACEMENT BATIERY 1,491.39 

5031 8/17/2016 (5308) BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES ATIEND COUNCIL MEETING FOR ONGOING SEWER RATE 1,300.00 

)32 8/17/2016 (2303) COAST CENTRAL CREDIT UNION POA DUES FOR PPE 8/15/16 120.00 
N 
co 1~~ R/17/,nu; fC::1.,71 I\IICTIM U 1:\1".,1(" 

_. -_ ..... - -_ .. -_ .. _-



Run: 
r-

5034 

5035 

5036 

5037 

5038 

5039 

5040 

5041 

5042 

5043 

5044 

5045 

5046 

5047 

5048 

5049 

5050 

S051 

5052 

5053 

5054 

5055 

5057 

5058 

5059 

60 
N 
It) ~, 

General Checking - US Bank of California 
8/17/2016 [5269] MOBILE DIESEL REPAIR CAT GENERATOR SERVICE - CHANGE OIL; REPLACE A 

8/17/2016 [5934] NORTH COAST JOURNAL ADVERTISEMENT FOR EMPLOYMENT FOR UTILITY WORK 

8/17/2016 [2569] NORTH COAST LABORATORIES, INC. AMMONIA NITROGEN W/O DISTILLATION; NITRATE AN 

8/17/2016 [3343] PITNEY BOWES RESERVE ACCOUNT POSTAGE PURCHASE FOR RESERVE 

8/17/2016 [4338] QUILL CORPORATION SAMSUNG TONER CARTRIDGE 

8/17/2016 [2742] SCOTIA TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 3" PAINT ROLLER & TRAY; ONE QT RED MAHOG WD F 

8/17/2016 (2694) SHELL OIL CO. PD FUEL EXPENSES FOR JULY 2016 

8/17/2016 (2481) VANTAGEPOINTTRANSFER AGENTS-304361 RETIREMENT FOR PPE 8/5/16 

8/17/2016 (2779) WILDWOOD SAW STIHL FS240 LOOP HANDLE LINE TRIMMER 

8/17/2016 (2787) WYCKOFF'S TWO ABS ADAPTER BUSHINGS 

8/24/2016 [5750] AERO-MOD TWO FEED HOPPER INLAYS FOR ELT TO REPAIR CAKE 

8/24/2016 (4938) BANDERA USA VALVE; BULKHEAD FITTING 

8/24/2016 (5330) CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL POST-IT NOTE PADS; 40 PK aa BATTERIES; HOT CUP 

8/24/2016 (2103) JOHN R CHICORA JR REIMBURSEMENT FOR OVERPAYMENT OF DEPENDENT IN 

8/24/2016 (6027) DE NORA WATER TECHNOLOGIES INC PARTS TO REPAIR CHLORINE GENERATOR 

8/24/2016 [2411) DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE LIFE INSURANCE FOR SEPTEMBER 2016 

8/24/2016 (2405) FORTUNA ACE HARDWARE MISC PARTS/FITTINGS FOR CHLORINE GENERATOR P 

8/24/2016 (5052) GHD, INC ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR FOLLOW UP ON CWSRF A 

8/24/2016 (2570) NILSEN COMPANY 12640# 8AGS SOLAR SALT 

8/24/2016 (2569) NORTH COAST LABORATORIES, INC. AMMONIA NITROGEN W/O DISTILLATION; BIOCHEMICA 

8/24/2016 [5253) REGAL FORMS APPEARANCE TICKETS 

8/24/2016 [2742] SCOTIA TRUE VALUE HARDWARE TUBING, BUSHIGS & ADAPTERS FOR CHLORINE GENER 

8/24/2016 [2787] WYCKOFF'S PVC PIPE, ADAPTERS & CLAMPS FOR CHLORINE GENE 

8/29/2016 [2225) AQUA SIERRA CONTROLS, INC PROVIDE CUSTOM PROGRAMMING TO SCADA 

8/29/2016 [3975] AT&T - 5709 U-VERSE INTERNET SERVICE 7/16/16 - 8/15/16 

8/29/2016 [2303] COAST CENTRAL CREDIT UNION POA DUES FOR PPE 08/19/16 

R/'}a/.,n1~ r':21.101 rnllll.lTV nl: Ullallnn. ",T ._------ -- ---

Page 3 

1,693.26 

88.00 

236.00 

400.00 

119.77 

112.32 

1,875.48 

5,080.58 

590.71 

6.39 

1,940.47 

64.78 

45.42 

333.66 

1,902.72 

216.00 

304.82 

1,566.50 

659.99 

270.00 

675.00 

23.85 

341.93 

790.00 

65.91 

120.00 



Run: 
r.= 

General Checking - US Bank of California 
8/29/2016 (2386) EUREKA RUBBER STAMP CO. 

8/29/2016 [2405] FORTUNA ACE HARDWARE 

8/29/2016 [5380] scon MOORE TRUCKING DBA SPRING 

8/29/2016 [3372] SPECIALTY TRAFFIC SYSTEMS 

8/29/2016 [2319] SUDDENLINK COMMUNICATIONS 

4 - 3/4X3 PLATES; 3 - 2X10 NAME PLATES; 1- 3 

PLUMBING TUBING FOR GENERATOR PIPING 

TRUCKING FOR 12.S7 TONS OF 1/2" SC 2S0 ASPHAL 

THREE SAFETY VESTS 

MONTHLY BROADBAND SERVICE 9/1/16 - 9/30/16 

5062 

5063 

5064 

5065 

5066 

5067 

5068 

5069 

5070 

8/29/2016 (2481) VANTAGEPOINTTRANSFER AGENTS-304361 RETIREMENT FOR PPE 8/19/16 

8/29/2016 [5166] VSP-VISION SERVICE PLAN 

8/29/2016 [2787] WYCKOFF'S 

8/31/2016 [2757] US POSTMASTER 

Total Checks/Deposits 

9424145 8/12/2016 ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER 

796-672 8/17/2016 ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER 

378-752 8/01/2016 ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER 

527-936 8/15/2016 ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER 

335-744 8/29/2016 ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER 

885709 8/17/2016 ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER 

2006490 8/01/2016 ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER 

672052 8/15/2016 ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER 

465883 8/29/2016 ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER 

Total EFT's/Bank Withdrawals 

TRX TO PR 8/09/2016 TRANSFER FROM CHECK TO PAYROLL ACCOUNT 

TRX TO PR 8/17/2016 TRANSFER FROM CHECK TO PAYROLL ACCOUNT 

TRX TO PR 8/23/2016 TRANSFER FROM CHECK TO PAYROLL ACCOUNT 

w )tal Transfer Between Accounts 
o 

VISION INSURANCE FOR SEPTEMBER 2016 

MISC PLUMBING PARTS FOR GENERATOR PIPING 

POSTAGE FOR UTILITY BILLS FOR THE MONTH OF AUG 

EFT FOR AFLAC FOR AUGUST 2016. 

EFT FOR EDD PAYROLL TAXES FOR FINAL CHECK 

EFT FOR EDD PAYROLL TAXES FOR PPE 07/22/2016 

EFT FOR EDD PAYROLL TAXES FOR PPE 08/05/2016 

EFT FOR EDD PAYROLL TAXES FOR PPE 08/19/2016 

EFT FOR EFTPS PAYROLL TAXES FOR FINAL CHECK 

EFT FOR EFTPSPAYROLL TAXES FOR PPE 07/22/2016 

EFT FOR EFTPS PAYROLL TAXES FOR PPE 08/05/2016 

EFT FOR EFTPS PAYROLL TAXES FOR PPE 08/19/2016 

TRANSFER TO PAYROLL ACCOUNT FOR PPE 08/05/2016 

TRANSFER TO PAYROLL ACCOUNT FOR FINAL CHECK 

TRANSFER TO PAYROLL ACCOUNT FOR PPE 08/19/2016 

106.90 

64.48 

484.28 

67.26 

260.58 

5,064.30 

290.80 

69.60 

359.61 

164,213.27 

335.70 

30.75 

1,642.14 

1,785.56 

1,664.16 

327.70 

10,560.00 

11,089.38 

10,591.86 

38,027.25 

26,771.49 

1,058.33 

25,697.69 

53,527.51 

Page 4 



Rio Dell Cit)' Hall 
675 Wi/lhvooil A J'elllle 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
rioilel/ci(l'.colII 

September 20, 2016 

TO: Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Discussion and Possible Action on the Metropolitan Wells Project. 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 

CITY Of 

itfNA\. 
(illS ) 
D~L 

I. Authorize staff to sign the funding agreement with the SWRCB to secure 
$665,876 in grant funds 

2. Authorize staff to issue of notice of award once the SWRCB funding agreement is 
issued by the State 

3. Authorize staff to issue the project notice to proceed once the notice of award had 
been returned with the signed contract and appropriate bonds and insurance 
documentation 

4. Authorize staff to execute a construction management contract with GHD in the 
amount of$203,500, the grant budgeted allocation 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The Council last received an update on the Metropolitan Wells Project on July 19,2016. The 
purpose of this agenda item is to give the Council the option to expedite action and construction 
on the project to help counter delays caused by the longer than expected processing of the City's 
grant paperwork. 

The State Water Resource Control Board (SWRCB) is still processing the funding agreement for 
the last piece of financing for the Metropolitan Wells Project to move forward. If the SWRCB 
funds come through as described, it is important that the City proceed as quickly as possible to 
the next steps to allow construction to occur, hopefully before major rains hit the region. If the 
SWRCB funding agreement is materially altered from what staff has reported to the Council 
($665,876), we \~ill return to the Council for further direction. 

Alternatively, the Council can direct staff to wait for the funding agreement to be received by the 
SWRCB and presented to the Council before authorization is given. 

11/ 

31 



15 September 2016 

To 

Copy to 

From 

Subject 

Kyle Knopp 

Steve McHaney, GHD 

Rebecca Crow, PE 

Metropolitan Wells Projects Bid Award 
Recommendation 

Memorandum 

Tet 707-267-2244 

Job no 11109193 

As you are aware, the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) is close to issuing a funding 

agreement for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds (DWSRF) grant dollars to cover the projected costs of 

the Metropolitan Wells project that are not covered by the Department of Water Resources (DWR) 

Proposition 84 and USDA Emergency Community Water Assistance Grant (ECWAG), and required City 

match for the ECWAG of $57,000. All approvals for the funding have been obtained and the SWRCB is 

processing the City's funding agreement. The issuance of the funding agreement from the SWRCB is the 

last piece needed for the City to be able to issue the notice of award on the construction project. The 

sections below detail the project bid results, project costs, and recommended next steps. 

Bid Results 

The City opened bid for the project on June 16, 2016. Table 1 below summarizes the bids received. The 

lowest responsive responsible bidder was Wah lund Construction. Wahlund's bid documents have been 

reviewed by GHD and also reviewed and approved by both the SWRCB and USDA Rural Development. The 

bid is attached to this memo for reference. 

Table 1: Summary of Metropolitan Wells Bid Results 

Contractor Total Base Bid Total Additive Bid Total Bid' 

GR Sundberg $1,273,000 $360,250 $1,633,250 

Mercer-Fraser Company $1,043,000 $370,000 $1,413,000 

Wahlund Construction $1,037,662 $296,700 $1,375,900 

*Per the bidding requirements the Apparent Low Bidder shall be determined based on the Total Bid (Total Base Bid plus Total Additive Bid) 

The total bid included some redundant items which could have been substituted to reduce project costs if 

there was not funding for the full project. However, with the addition of the DWSRF funds, the City can 

pursue the full project. The final additive items that are included in the project are the paved driveway (Item 

A-1), double vessel 9reensand 300 gallon per minute greensand filters (Item A-3), serpentine chlorine 

contact pipe (Item A-4), and geotextile fabric in the subgrade (Item A-5). The next section of this memo 

reviews the project budget including total project costs and funding sources. 

GKDlnc. 
i l8 Third Strwl EUrckaCA 95501 USA 
T 1 i 07 ·.\.13 8326 F I 707.:.\.18330 e ellrt)" .. ~1iki COlli W w/.wghd com 

32 



Project Budget 

The full project budget including the construction base bid and recommended additive items are show in 

Table 2 below. This budget includes all construction costs. including a 10% contingency. previously 

completed work on the monitoring wells. project administration and planning. including allowances for City 

staff time. design and bidding costs and construction management costs. 

Table 2: Metropolitan Wells Project Budget 

Item Budget 

Construction: Base Bid $1 .079.200 

Construction: Recommended Additive Items $223.700 

Construction Contingency $130.290 

Completed Monitoring well Construction $53.946 

Project Admin and Planning $68.140 

Design and Bidding $120.300 

Construction Management $203.500 

Total Budget $1.879.076 

Table 3 details the funding breakdown. As can be seen in Table 3 with the addition of the DWSRF funds. all 

project costs area covered. with the City's share at less than 4% of the total costs. 

Table 3: Metropolitan Wells Project Funding Breakdown by Source 

Funding Source Budget 

DWR Prop 84 Grant S 783.000 

ECWAG $ 373.200 

DWSRF (In process) $ 665.876 

City Contribution S 57.000 

Total $1.879.076 

Recommended Next Steps 

Discussions with the SWRCB Indicate that the City should be receiving the issued funding agreement in the 

next several weeks. It is important that the City complete the contracting process with Wahlund and issue the 

project notice to proceed as soon as possible to get construction underway before the rainy season comes . . 

It is recommended that the City Council authorize the City Manager to sign the funding agreement with the 

2 

33 



SWRCB to secure S665,876 in grant funds. Further, it is recommended that the City Council authorize the 

City Manager to issue of notice of award once the SWRCB funding agreement is issued by the State. It is 

also recommended that the City Council authorize the City Manager to issue the project notice to proceed 

once the notice of award had been returned with the signed contract and appropriate bonds and insurance 

documentation. Lastly it is recommended that the City Council Authorize the City Manager to execute a 

construction management contract with GHD in the amount of $203,500, the grant budgeted allocation. The 

Construction Management Contract will be reviewed by USDA prior to being signed by the City. 

With the City Council'S authorization to proceed on the items discussed above the City will be positioned to 

start construction on the Metropolitan Wells Project as soon as the administrative paperwork is completed. 

Regards 

Rebecca Crow 
City Engineer 

JlIB d Award Memo docx J 

34 



BID FORiH 

City of Rio Dell Metropolitan Wells Redevelopment Project 

TABLE OF ARTICLES 

Article I - Bid Recipient 
Article 2 - Bidder's Acknowledgments 
Article 3 - Bidder's Representations 
Article 4 - Bidder's Certification 
Article 5 - Basis of Bid 
Article 6 - Time of Com pie lion 
Article 7 - Attachments 10 Bid 
Article 8 - Defined Terms 
Article 9 - Bid Submittal 

ARTICLE 1- BID RECIPIENT 

1.01 This Bid is submitted to: City of Rio Dell 

1.02 The undersigned Bidder proposes nnd agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to entcr into an Agreement with 
Owner in the fonn includcd in the Bidding Documents to perfonn all Work as specified or indicated in the 
Bidding Documents for the prices Dnd "'thin the times indicated in this Bid and in accordance with the other 
terms and conditions oftbe Bidding Documents. 

ARTICLE 2- BIDDER'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

2.0 I Bidder accepts all of the tenns and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, including without limitation 
those dealing with the disposition of Bid security, This Bid will remain subject to acceptance for 120 days after 
tbe Bid opening. or for such longer period of time thilt Bidder may agree to in writing upon request or Owner. 

ARTICLE 3- BIDDER'S REPRESENTATlO:'lS 

In submitting this Bid, Bidder represents that: 
A, Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding Documents, the other related data identified in the 
Bidding Documents, nnd the follo\\ing Addenda, receipt of which is bereby acknowledged, 

Addendum No, Addendum Date 

6/3/Ib 
1.1101 II. 

3 

00410-1 

3S 



B. Bidder has visited the Site nnd become familiar with ::md is satisfied as to the general, local and Site 
conditions that may affect cost, progress. and performance oftbt: Work. 

C. Bidder is familiar with ond is satisfied ilS to il11 Federal, State and local Laws and Regulations that may 
affect cost. progress and performance of the Work 

D. Bidder has carefully studied all: (I) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or 
contiguous to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions in or relnting to existing surface or subsurface 
structures at or contiguow to the Site (except Underground Facilities) which have been identified in SC-4.02, 
and (2) reports ond drawings of Hazardous Environmentol Conditions, if any, ot the Site that have been 
identified in SC-4.06 as containing reliable "technical data." 

E. Bidder has considered the infonnation knO\\l1 to Bidder, information commonly knO\\ll to contractors doing 
business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Bidding 
Documents; and the Site·related reports and drawings identified in the Bidding Documents, with respect to the 
effect of such information, observations, and documents on (I) the cost, progress, and performance of the 
\Vork; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by 
Bidder. including applying the specific means, methods, techniques:, sequences, and procedures of construction 
expressly required by the Bidding Documents; and (3) Bidder's safety precautions and programs. 

F. Based on the infonnation and observations referred 10 in Paragraph 3.01.E above, Bidder does not consider 
that any further examinations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the determination of this Bid 
for performance of eh Work at the price(s) bid and \\ithin the times and in accordance with the other tenns and 
conditions of the Bidding Docwnents. 

O. Bidder is aware of the general nature of the Work to be perfortned by Owner and others at the Site that 
rel.tes to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents. 

H. Bidder has given Engineer written notice of all connicts, errors. ambiguities, or discrepancies that Bidder 
has discovered in the Bidding Documents, and the written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to 
Bidder. 

I. The Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all tenus and 
conditions for the perfonnance of the Work for which this Bid is submitted. 

1. Bidder will submit y,Titten evidence of its authority to do business in the State or other jurisdiction where the 
Project is located not later than the date of its execution of the Agreement. 

ARTICLE 4· BIDDER'S CERTIFICATION 

4.01 Bidder furthcrrepresents that: 

A. This Bid is genuine .nd not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed individual or entity and 
is no1 submitted in conformity with any Ilgreement or rules of any group, association. organization or 
corporation; 

B. Bidder has not directly or indirectIy induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid; 

C. Bidder has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from bidding; ond 

D. Bidder has not engaged in cOmJpt. fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing for the 
Contract. For the purposes of this Paragraph 4.01.D: 

00410·2 

36 



1. "corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving. or soliciting of any thing of value likely [Q influence 
the action of a public official in tbe bidding process. 

2. ufraudulent practice" means an intentional misrepresentation offaets made to (a) to influence the bidding 
process to the detriment ofO",l1cr, (b) to establish bid prices at artificial non·competitivc levcls, or (c) to 
dcprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition; 

3. "collusive practice" means a scheme or arrangement between n'iO or more Bidders, with or without the 
knowledge ofO\\:ncr, a purpose of which is to establish bid prices at artificial, non·cornpetitive levels; and 

4. "coercive practice" means hanning or threatening to hann, directly or indirectly, persons or their property to 
influence their particip<ltion in the bidding process or affect the exccution of the Contract. 

00410-3 

37 



ARTICLE 5· BASIS OF BID 

5.01 BASE BID 

Bidder will complete the \York described in the Contract Documents for the following unit prices or lump sum. 
Bids shall include sales Ia., and all olher applieable I .. ,es and fees. 

B A.SE BID SCHEDULE 

hem 1 I Est. I I Unil , 
No. Description , Qty. i Unit Cosl TOI.I 

I. MobilizatioolDemobilization 1 I I ' -I i LS I ~Z ODa ~2 ,~C 
2. 1 Construction Staking I I LS ! SOOD~ 15 Mo.) 

3. Shoring and Trench Safety I / LS 
/ 

I iJuif' /ldcJD-

4. Erosion and Sediment Control I I I LS ! )..Oc-V I-z.OiV 
, 

I I /2.,1».1 5. 1 DemolitionIRemovallDisposal I LS 12 bUI l-I 

6. 
Clearing/Grubbing, Sile Grading, and Percolation Pond 

I I LS In ,AJO- ' -z.. /1-6' Construction 

7.1 DeslIUction of Existing Wells I I LS / 5)~- ':;7i\)-

8. 1 Well #1 Equipment, Piping, and Appurtenances / I I LS /26,cLIJ tcJ ,1(0 , 
9. : Well #3 Equipmenl, Piping, and Appurtenances I LS I ()SC{) n~ 
!O1 Chlorination Equipment and Eye Wash Sialion I LS I !lIND 11~Jl} 

I I 
I I I Slabs and Fiberglass Housings for Wells and Chlorination I I I LS 15 ~ ;\1> 150. v,}) i Equipmenl 

121 Perimeler Fencing and Gate I I I LS lIS l0c7 'S;clli ~ , 
13 ! Electrical and Controls Syslem I I LS 125"o.lii 2~9. u:t 
141 Single Vessel Greens.nd Filter Packaged W.ler Trealment Syslem 

I 

I I I LS b\ D!V~ ' Dj) " at 300 llEm 

15: CMU Tre.tmcnt and Controls Building , I I 
: 

LS 1/70 DD~: t7,~) , I , 
EA I Lf~tJtQ gb,Ctt -16. Clear Well Booster Pumps and MOlars I 2 I , 

171 Site Piping, V.lves, and Appurten.nces I I LS / 15,o,0· 1 /~~ I 

181 Site Gravel I LS If I. .1.,,) - 1!loo.) ~ , , 
19~ Gravel Driveway I : LS / J t'4>~ n il}j-

201 Cle.r Well Cleaning, Disinfeclion, and Reco.ling I I LS I 5 uti) j ~ JLtJ 
I 

TOTAL OF BASE BID 
oJ 

(S \,1) 2> " ,b" z. - ) 
[fl/L-LlrJN (~{f2..T./ S¥.,.J T-HiJ<>A,;,a 

t+')t0(i iLE () 6lX \ '-( T.:uv {)i>wAtZ-5 
".." 'E TOT AL OF BASE BID [N WORDS ($ V,'-J 

00410-4 

38 



All specified cash allowances are included in the price(s) set forth above and have been computed in 
accordance with Paragraph 11.02 of the General Conditions 

5.02 ADDITIVE BID 

The Base Bid Schedule includes Line Item 14 (Single Yessel Greensand Filter Packaged Water Treatment 
System at 309 gpm). However, after evaluating the bids that are received, the O""er may decide that a Double 
Yessel Greensand Filter Packaged Water Treatment System may be more appropriate. In this case, either 
Additive Bid Item A-2 or A-3 would be constructed in lieu ofBnse Bid Item 14. The Contractor's costs given 
below for A-2 and A-3 should include only the additional cost ahove the base Item 14 for installing a Double 
Yessel Treatment System as opposed to a Single Yessel Treatment System. If any additive item is awarded, the 
contract would be for the base bid value plus the corresponding additive bid value. 

Item Est. Unit Additive 
No. Description Qty. I Unit Cost Total Additive Cost 

A-I Paved Driveway I LS JI DOD - ,. / ~tJ!) -
Double Vessel Greensand Filter 
Packaged Water Treatment System at 

I LS ? J, llIltr f1,Mv -A-2 200 gpm each vessel (difference in 
cost from Base Bid Item 14) 
Double Yessel Greensand Filter / 

lib DoJ -A-3 
Packaged Water Treatment System at 

I LS 1\ 0,vib 
300 gpm each vessel (difference in , 
cost from Base Bid Item 14) 

A-4 Serpentine Chlorine Contact Pipe I LS ~~ObO - I CG'fS, DoD -
WO"en Geotextile Fnbric Under Site 

I LS 57 0 iJ - I ~ 7[)b -A-5 Gravel nnd Drivewny , . , 
TOTAL OF ADDITIVE BID 

TOTAL OF ADDITIVE BID IN WORDS (S 'fWD f,JtJOil.;21/ iJINT'r' Sill. "'J/-IM;;-'ftJ!) 

TOTAL BID (Total Base Bid Plus Total Additive Bid) ($-U7~qO() --
TOTAL OF BID IN WORDS (S rl'f {hI t..4t:J, t/"ue /-i.',vOll",rIJ .;;el€,vi.'-' ;: f .'t 

f.1iN€ H f.}LiiO /;t1'-(A(L~ 
Low Bidder shall be determined based on the TOTAL BID (total base bid plus total additive bid). The Owner 
reserves the right to award the Base Bid plus any or nil Additive Bid items in quantities required. 

ARTICLE 6- TIME OF COMPLETION 

6.0 I Bidder ngrees that the Work will be substantially complete and will be completed and ready ror final 
payment in accordance \vith Paragra.ph 14.07 of the General Conditions on or before the dates or \\;thin the 
number of calendar daY5 indicated in the Agreement. 

6.02 Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to liquidated dama.ges. 

ARTICLE 7- ATTACHMENTS TO THIS BID 

7.01 The following documents are attached to and made a condition of this Bid: 

00410-5 

/C:::"V 

~PL tift a2:: 

39 



Po Required Bid secu.;ty in the fonn ofa Bid Bond (EICDC No. C-430) or Cenified Check; 

B. IrBid amount exceeds SIO,OOO, signed Compliance SllltemenllCertifications of Nonsegregated 
Facilities RD 400-6). Refer to specific equal opponunity requirements set fonh in the Supplementary 
Condilions; 

C. If Bid amount exceeds 525.000. signed Ccnification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. 
Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion· Lower Tiered Covered Transactions (AD· I 048); 

D. If Bid amount exceeds S I 00.000. signed RD Instruction I 940.Q. Exhibit A·I. Cenificarion for 
Conlr.lcts. Grant, nnd Loans. Refer to paragraph 18.11 of the General Conditions; 

E. Non·Collusion Affidavit; 

F. Workers Compensation Certification; 

G. List of Subcontractors 

H. American Iron and Steel Requirement Certification 

I. Authority to Sign Bid Proposal (if applicable) 

J. Power of Anomey 

K. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Docume:ntation. Refer to Section 00495 for more infonnatioD_ 

ARTICLE 8- DEFL'>;ED TERMS 

8.0 I The tcnns used in this Bid with initial capitallelters have the meanings stated in the Instructions to 
Bidders, the General Conditions. and the Supplementary Conditions 

ARTICLE 9- BID SUBMITIAL 

9.01 This Bid is submitted by: 
• 

Bidder's Business add",,,: gg,O HilMA Dr. 

Phone: (10 7) ah'3 - 0 1;0 Focs.nlle: (107) ;;tb8 - 0137 
~v~e. If""'" tL{, Subrnined on _-' .... = ~"'-,,=_~O _____ • 20-I..\L. 

State Contractor License No. b 711'1 'j 3 
Employer's Ta, ID No. 63 - 03 8 g 'f 7 , 

If Bidderis: 

An Individual 

00410·6 

40 



Name (typed or printed): 

By: 
(Individual's signalllre) 

Doing business as: 

A Partnership 

Partnership Name: (SEAL) 

By: 
(Signature a/general partlJer - allach evidence of authority to sign) 

Name (typed or printed): 

A Corporation 

Corporation Name: (SEAL) 

Slate of Incorporation: GA 
Type (General Business, Professional, Service, Limited Liability): .>(",2,-,eww;==-"w"I'-...Jf3=v,,-=$..!~..:I\.e.$..=::::..S,,--_ 
By: ~(g...:-=,--_t0""'--":'~"'-:':-~--:---:--:---:-______ _ 

(Signature - allach evidence of authority 10 sign) 

Name (typed or printed): /{e.n kJakllMd 
Title: 

Attest: 
(Sig1Jaturc~ ~tporalC Secrcla1J~ 

Date of Qualification 10 do business in California is ~ IJI I "t 6. 
A Joint Venture 

Name of loint Venturer: 

Firsl loinl Venturer Name: _________________________ _ (SEAL) 

By: 
(Signature o/firstjoill/l'elllllre partner - attach evidence of authority 10 sign) 

Name (typed or printed): 

Tille: 

Second Joint Venrurer Name: (SEAL) 

By: 
(SigtJature of secondjoitll venture pa,.tncr - attach e~'idence of autlron"ty 10 sign) 

00410-7 

41 



Name (typed or printed): 

Title: 

(Each joint venturer must sign. The manner of signing for each individual, partnership, and corporation 
that is a party to the joint venture should be in the manner indicated above.) 

00410-8 

42 



NON COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT TO BE EXECUTED BY BIDDER 
Al'lD SUBMITTED WITH BID 

(Public Contract Code Section 7106) 

State ofCaJifomia Jf 
COU~Of ~vn~b#(. ; ~c/.I y:A.> .yv=g[9JJCC- _, pein!l first u~ SW~I'Jl! deP9?es a!J!!.Jays that 
he or she IS I t I &. I eJ of Wr. I ( Of} j,OI7 -/-/)( . , 
the party making the foregoing bid, that the bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any 
undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation; that the bid is 
genuine and not collusive or sham; that the bidder has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, 
connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or that anyone shall refrain 
from bidding; that the bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, 
communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other bidder, or 
10 fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder, or to 
secure any advantage against the public body awarding the contract of anyone interested in the 
proposed contract; that all statements contained in the bid are true; and further that the bidder has 
not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents 
thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, or paid, and will not pay, any fee to any 
corporation, partnership, company association, organization, bid depository, or to any member or 
agent thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid. 

00420-1 

43 



CALIFORNIA JURAT WITH AFFIANT STATEMENT GOVERNMENT CODE § 8202 

'~ee Attached Document (Notary to cross out lines 1-6 below) o See Statement Below (Lines 1-6 to be completed only by document signer[s], not Notary) 

Signature of Document Signer No. 1 Signature of Document Signer No.2 (if any) 

A nalary public or other officer completing Ihis certificate verifies only Ihe Idenlily of Ihe Individual who signed Ihe 
document 10 which this certificate is allached, and nallhe truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

State of calif0.:r;a 

County otC! rDII?)()LQ'1=-

Seal 
Place Notary Seal Above 

Subscribed and swom to (or affirmed) before me 

on this 1/.p111 day of'CftmP 

Year by Date Month 

(1 ),_1<-'--'--"~=--I-'-A-,--, --",i)=0@""",-,-,i...!<.tJ=/v-,,-rjJ~ 
(and (2) ___ --:-_______ ), 

Name(s) of Signer(s) 

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence 
to be the person(s) who appeared before me. 

~ 
I 

--------------------------OPTIONAL--------------------------
Though this section is optional, completing this Information can deter alteration of the document or 

fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document. 
Description of Attached Document 

Title or Type of Document: ______________ Document Date: _____ _ 

Number of Pages: Signer(s) Other Than Named Above: 

C2014 National Nolary Association' Y/W\v.NationaINotary.org '1-BOO-US NOTARY (1-800-876-6827) item #5910 

44 



E.lCDC PENAL SUM FORM 

BID BOND 

Any singular reference to Bidder, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. 

BIDDER (Name and Address): 

WAHLUND CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
830 HILMA DRIVE 
EUREKA, CA. 95503 

SURETY (Name, and Address at Principal Place at Business): 
TRAVELERS CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY OF AMERICA 
100 CALIFORNIA STREET, SUITE 300 
SAN FRANCISCO, CA. 94111 

OWNER: City of Rio Dell, 675 Wildwood Avenue, Rio Dell, CA 95562 

BID 
Bid Due Date: 06/16/2016 
Description: Metropolitan Wells Redevelopment Project, Rio Deli, CA 

BOND 
Bond Number: NIA 
Date: 06/15/2016 
Penal sum TEN PERCENT OF THE AMOUNT OF THE BID $ 10% 

(Words) (Figures) 
Surety and Bidder, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each cause 
this Bid Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative. 

BIDDER SURETY TRAVELERS CASUALTY AND 
WAHl liND CONSTRIICTION INC (Seal) SURETY COMPANY OF AMERICA (Se31) 
Bidder's Name and Corporate Seal Surety's Na d Corpora Seal 

By: ~tdA~ By: 

Signature 

DANIKA L. MOTT 
Print Name Print Name 

j?y-e-sic41+- ATTORNEY IN FACT 

Attest: 

Title I () r~~ 
.--.::.2~~",--,~!..,'2~~S-_-- Attesy ~ / a~rV: 
Signature U ~m(ture 

Title COMMERCIAL LINES MANAGER 

Note: Addresses are to be used tor giving any required notice. 
Provide execution by any additional parties, such as joint venturers, if necessary. 

EJCOC- C .. 430, Bid Bond (Penal Sum Form). Published 20U. 
Pn~pil~ bV the EnalneelS Joint Contract Documents Committee. 

Pap 1 012 

45 



E.lCDC-=-
( :r-"\;: '." '_ ',- • .. ~ " ., PENAL SUM FORM 

1. Bidder and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns to pay to Owner upon default of Bidder the penal sum set forth on the face of this Bond. Payment of the 
penal sum is the extent of Bidder's and Surety's liability. Recovery of such penal sum under the terms of this Bond 
shall be Owner's soie and exclusive remedy upon defauit of Bidder. 

2. Default of Bidder shall occur upon th e failure of Bidder to deliver within the time required by the Bidding 
Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding 
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents. 

3. This obligation shall be null and void if: 

3.1 Owner accepts Bidder's Bid and Bidder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Documents (or any 
extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding 
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents, or 

3.2 All Bids are rejected by Owner, or 

3.3 Owner faiis to issue a Notice of Award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bidding Documents (or any 
extension thereof agreed to in writing by Bidder and, if applicabie, consented to by Surety when required 
by Paragraph 5 hereof). 

4. Payment under this Bond will be due and payable upon default of Bidder and within 30 calendar days after 
receipt by Bidder and Surety of written notice of default from Owner, which notice will be given with reasonable 
promptness, identifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement olthe amount due. 

5. Surety waives notice of any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to Issue Notice of 
Award agreed to in writing by Owner and Bidder, provided that the total time for issuing Notice of Award including 
extensions shall not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from the Bid due date without Surety's written consent. 

6. No suit or action shall be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days after the notice of default 
required In Paragraph 4 above is received by Bidder and Surety and In no case later than one year after the Bid due 
date. 

7. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in the 
state in which the Project is located. 

8. Notices required hereunder shall be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses shown 
on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commercial courier, or by United States 
Registered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to be effective upon 
receipt by the party concerned. 

9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attorney evidencing the authority 
of the officer, agent, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal, and deliver such 
Bond and bind the Surety thereby. 

10. This Bond Is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of any 
applicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at 
length . If any prOVision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the prOVision of said statute shall 
govern and the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewith shall continue in full force and effect. 

11. The term "Bid" as used herein includes a Bid, offer, or proposal as applicable. 

EJCllC" C-430, Bid Bond 1 ..... 1 Sum Fonnl. Pubisbed IOU. 
Prepared bV the Enllneers Joint Contrad: DOaJments Committee. 

Pile 20'2 

46 



CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT CIVIL CODE § 1189 

A notary public or other officer complet"ng this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

State of California I _ _ 
County of S-...L lffI1f11Tl.itf1 ) 
on:JirflQ IS1;'faOI/"beforeme,LpW (kmlLhctir'..r:: NIiTQd:!1.{l;bUv, 

Date ,'S') \, " L, itr~ N;,r;e ~d Title ofihelifflcer 
personally appeared _"''-",-___ I""", kJJ\=.!'-~""">J..... ___ --'1!"'u~ '--, -r _____________ _ 

Name(s) of Signer(s) 

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the perso~whose name~ 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowled9llll, to me thattre@)l!l!Rey executed the same in 
~Ihelr authorized capacity~d that by ~signature(sjp2 the instrument the person{s)l 
or the entity upon behalf of which fhe perso~ted, executed the instrument. 

Place Notary Seal Above 

I certify under PENAL TV OF PERJURY under the laws 
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and comact. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature--,C\-,~",Q",On..7.""6..ryyy,,~=,,:-:,~=-:::,-:-::.....::,--_ 
Signature of Notary Public 

------------- OPTIONAL -------------
Though this section is optional, completing this Information can deter alteration of the document or 

fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document. 

Description of Attached Document 
Title or Type of Document: Document Date: _______ _ 
Number of Pages: Signer(s) Other Than Named Above: ___________ _ 

Capacity(ies) ClaImed by Signer(s) 
Sigrler's Name: ~_-::::~,..,.... _____ _ 
!J Corporate Officer - Title(s): _-:-___ _ 
:J Partner - 0 Limited 0 General 

Signer's Name:.,,----== --:-------o Corporate Officer - TiUe(s): _-,-___ _ 
o Partner - 0 Limited 0 Gerleral 

:J Individuat 0 Attorney in Fact o Individual 0 Attorney in Fact 
:J Trustee 0 Guardian or Conservator o Trustee 0 Guardian or Conservator 
:::J Other: ::-__ -,;-________ _ 
Signer ts Representing: ________ _ 

o Other: =-__ :;-________ _ 
Signer Is Representing: ________ _ 

©2014 National Notary Association' www.NationaINotary.org • 1-800-US NOTARY (1-800-876-6827) Item #5907 

47 



... ·IAR'.I:-'OG: 7H:S FOWC:R OF ATIORnEV IS I;-NA!..I,) ... ·/I'iHOUT TH: F.EO EOADE~ 

..Q,. POWER OF ATTOR:-'-E\' 

TRAVELERSJ Furlllington Casu:.!!) Cump'1n} 
Fldelh) und Guur:mty Insuruncc Cum pun) 
Fldeliay and Guur.anl~· Insunmct' linden' riters. Inc. 
51. Puul nrc and ~Iarlnc Insurunce Company 
5(. P;lul GU:lrdi;m Insurance Cumpan~ 

230085 

St. Paul ;\Iercur~ 'nsur","cc Company 
Trun!ltrs C:tsu:lhy and SurclY Company 
Tru\"(~lcrs CusuDh~' :md Sunt~ Compan} of ..\nlcrica 
l"nil t:d States Fidelfl} nnd GUlIrunt} Compan} 

Ccrlificutc Ko. 006584532 

K~O" ALL ME.'1 BY THESE PRESE."TS: Tn:!1 Hmnington Casuall~ Com(lany. 51 . P':lid Fire and M:lrir.c lns'Jrnnce Comfl:!ny. 51 P:!ul Gt-anJlan Insurilnce 
Compan).5t Paul M~;cu r)' Insu ranc;e Compan)'. TrJ\ d en. CasuJlt~, and Surel) Company. Tr3\elers Casuall:' and Surel~ Compan: or Amcri(:!. anI.! United SI:lle5 
Fidchl) and Gu:lrJmy Comp:!n)' are corpor:ttions dul)' organized under the laws or the St,:l1e of Connecli ut. Ihal Fidellt) nnd Guaranty Insurance Company is a 
corporatIOn duly org.mileJ under the Ja\\'5 of the State of 10 \\0.. anJ milt Fidclil) acd Guarani: Insurance Unt!.: t\\riters, Inc. IS n corpor':lI ion dul~ organizc=d ulltkr lh" 
lav. ~ or Ihe SIa'ie of Wis.con .. in (herein collec:thdy "Inro Ihc= ·'Ctlmpanic~"" unJ lha! the Companje~ do hercbr make. constItute and appoint 

Dom iJ...a L. ft.Jott, Toni farrar, Ilnd Maurice O. Shaw Jr. 

of the Cu~ of Eureka . Slare of California .Ihen true :aad laufu] Allomc),(sHn Fuel. 
e!lch in their separate cnplC itr if mor~ than one is named aOO .. e.IO si~n. e'(ccuh:, '>«::11 anJ ilcL:no\\ll!dgl! nn~ and all bond,~, rl!cogOll.ancc\, condltion:1/ undl!nakings and 
other writing.~ obligatory in the nature thereof on beh:1lf of the Companie'o in their bu~inc!o~ of llU!lrallleeill!:llhc liddit)' ur pcrllun .. guarJm~ing the pcrform:mee or 
conlracts and C,,(I.'L Uling or guar.mlccing bonds :lOd undenakin gs required or penni lied in an)' actions or proceeding~ :1Howcd b} la\L 

IN WITNESS \\HEREOf. the COnlpanie; Ime colusc:d th.i~ inslrumcnllo hi! silned and their cnrporJII! ~JI .. to be hereto "ffi~ed, lhis _____ 2_6~I_h ____ _ 
Iob:- of October . 2015 . 

Slate of Con~cticlJl 

City of HoIttiord <;, 

Furmjn~tun Casuulty Company 
Fidelity and Guarunty Insurance Company 
Fidelity and GUilrant) Insurance Undcr"riters.lnc. 
51. Paul Fire :lIId Murine Insuruncc Cumpun} 
St. Paul Guardi:m Insur:lncc Company 

~ 
~ 

By: 

St. faul Mercury Insuranc~ Company 
Tra,'elcrs Casualty und Surdy Company 
Tran'len Casualty QIIII Surely COIIIII:my ur America 
United St!1les Fidelity and Guaranty Company 

On th15lhc 26th dJ) of October 1015 . before m\! pct501lall) app<ared Robert L. Rane). \\he ;lC:l..no\~led£.1!1.! himself to 
bt! Ihe!' Senior Vicl.' Prc.~idcnl of Fannington C3S\lah~ Comp~ny. Fidcln~ :lll:J GU.u-JOl) Insura!lce Compan). Flde"t~ anr.! GuaranI) Insumnce lInderwritc!'rs. Inc" Sf Paul 
Fire and ~1annc Imurolnce Compan~. 51. Paul Guard Ian Insurance Company. 51 PJul ~1c!'n:ury 'n5ur.m(e Company. Tra\'c!c!'rs CllSualt~ und Sure!) Campan). Tr.m:ll!rs 
Casu:lll) and Suret~ Compan) of Amenc ... and UnIted Slal~ Fidchl) and GU:lrant) Compan}. and th.u he. as such, being authmilecl.~n to £!n. elecutea the foregoing 
instrument for the purpose, the rem (onLline d b) ,~ igning on behalf or the cnrrorolrlon~ hy hiru~d( 3~ a dul~ OIulhuri'(ed ufficer. 

In Whnrss WhrrCDf. t hereunto set mylrolnJ ant.! official stal. 
~J~ Commu,siOtl c'\pires the 30lh dJy of June. 10 16 

58440-8-12 Prinled In USA 

"" M.me C Tctf";luh. '>:olary Pur.li~ 

WARNiNG: THIS POWER OF ATIORNEV IS INVALID WITHOUT THE REO BORDER 

-------
48 



1·:.JCDC~- PENAL SUM FORM 

1. Bidder and Surety, jOintly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators. successors, and 
assigns to pay to Owner upon default of Bidder the penal sum set forth on the face of this Bond. Payment of the 
penal sum Is the extent of Bidder's and Surety's liability. Recovery of such penal sum under the terms of this Bond 
shall be Owner's sale and exclusive remedy upon default of Bidder. 

2. Default of Bidder shall occur upon the failure of Bidder to deliver within the time required by the Bidding 
Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding 
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents. 

3. This obligation shall be null and void if: 

3.1 Owner accepts Bidder's Bid and Bidder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Documents (or any 
extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding 
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents, or 

3.2 All Bids are rejected by Owner, or 

3.3 Owner falls to issue a Notice of Award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bidding Documents (or any 
extension thereof agreed to in writing by Bidder and, if applicable, consented to by Surety when required 
by Paragraph S hereof). 

4. Payment under this Bond will be due and payable upon default of Bidder and within 30 calendar days after 
receipt by Bidder and Surety of written notice of default from Owner, which notice will be given with reasonable 
promptness, identifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement of the amount due. 

5. Surety waives notice of any and all defenses based on or ariSing out of any time extension to Issue Notice of 
Award agreed to in writing by Owner and Bidder, provided that the total time for issuing Notice of Award including 
extensions shall not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from the Bid due date without Surety's written consent. 

6. No suit or action shall be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days after the notice of default 
required in Paragraph 4 above is received by Bidder and Surety and in no case later than one year after the Bid due 
date. 

7. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only In a court of competent jurisdiction located in the 
state in which the Project is located. 

8. Notices required hereunder shall be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses shown 
on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commercial courier, or by United States 
Registered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to be effective upon 
receipt by the party concerned. 

9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attorney evidenCing the authority 
of the officer, agent, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal, and deliver such 
Bond and bind the Surety thereby. 

10. This Bond is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of any 
applicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at 
length. If any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of said statute shall 
govern and the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewith shall continue in full force and effect. 

11. The term "Bid" as used herein includes a Bid, offer, or proposal as applicable. 

~ (-430, Bki Bond IPenal Sum Form), pubrrshed 2013. 
Prepared by the EnKlneers Joint COntru1 Documents Committee. 

PIse2of2 

49 



USDA COMPLlA..\'CE STATEi\lE!'iT 
F onn RD 400-6 
(Rev. 12-09) 

This statement relates to a proposed contract with the City afRia Dell for the Metropolitan 'VeIls 
Redevelopment Project who expects to finance the contract \\o;th assistance from either the Rural Housing 
Service (RRS), Ruml Business-Cooperotive SeNic. (RBS), or the Rural Utilities Service (RUS) or their 
successor agencies, United States Department of Agriculture (whether by a loan, grant, loan insurance, 
guarantee, or other fonn of finilncial assistance). I am the undersigned bidder or prospective contractor. I 
represent that: 

I. 1 I vi' have, I ) have nol, participaled in a previous contract or subcontract subject to 
Executive Order 11246 (regardIng equal emplo}ment opportUnity) or a preceding similar 
Executive Order. 

2. If I have participated in such a contract or subcontract, I I v{.:ave. [ J have not, filed all 
compliance repons that 1 have been required to file in connection v.;th the contract or 
subcontract. 

If the proposed contract is for S50,OOO or more and I havc SO or more cmployees, I also represent that: 

3. I l I have. 1 I have not, prcviowly had contracts subject to the written affinnative action 
program requirements of the Secretary of Labor. 

4. If! have participated in such a contract or subcontr.ct, I I ) h.ve, I ) have not, devcloped 
and placed on file at each establishment affinnative action programs as required by the rules 
and regulations ofthe Secretary of Labor. 

I understand that if! have failed to file any compliance reports that have been required or me, I am not eligible 
and wi1l not be eligible to have my bid considered or to enter into the proposed contract unless Ilnd until I make 
an arrangement regarding such reports that is satisfactory to either the RHS, RES, or RUSt or to the office 
where the reports are required to be filed. 

I also cenify that I do not maintain or provide for my employees any segregated facilities at any ormy 
establishments. and that I do nol permit my employees to perfonn their services ot any location, under my 
control, where segregated facilities are maintained. I certify further thai I will not maintain or provide for my 
employees any segregated facilities at .ny of my cstablislunents, and that I will not permit my employees to 
perfonn their services at any location. under my control, where segregated facilities are maintained. I agree 
thilt a breach of this certification is a violation of the Equal Dpportuniry clause in my contract. As used in this 
certification, the teon "segregated facilities" means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms and wash rooms, 
restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms !lnd other storuge or dressing areas, parking lots, 
drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation and housing facilities provided for 
employees which are segregated by explicit directive or are in fact segregated on the basis ofrace, creed, color, 
or national origin, because of habit, tocal custom. or otherwise. I further agree that (except where I have 
obtained identical certifications from proposed subcontractors prior to the award of subcontracts exceedmg 
510,000 which are not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity clau;e; th.tl will retain such 
certifications in my files; and that I will forward the following notice to such proposed subcontractors (except 
where the proposed subcontractors have submitted identical certificatiotlS for specific time periods): (See 
Reverse). 

RD 400-6 (Rev. 12-09) 

OQ.l40-1 

so 



NOTICE TO PROSI'ECTIYE SUBCONTRACTORS OF REQUIREME1\TS 
FOR 

CERTIFICATIONS OF NON-SEGREGATED FACILITIES 

A certification of Nonsegregated Facilities, as required by the May 9, 1967, order (32F.R. 7439, May 19, 
1967) on Elimination of Segregated Facilities, by the Secretary of Labor, must be submitted prior to the 
award of a subcontract exceeding S 1 0,000 which is not exempt from the provisions of the Equal 
Opportunity Clause. The certification may be submitted either for each subcontract or for all subcontracts 
during a period (i.e., quarterly, semiannually, or annually) 

NOTE: The penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.c. 1001. 

Date:.~b~/lc=b.r-1t=-6 __ _ 
Signalilre of Bidder or Prospective Contractor 

Address (including Zip Code) 

00440-2 

51 



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility 
and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions. 

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debannent 
and Suspension, 7 CFR Part 3017.510, Participants' responsibilities. The regulations were 
published as Part rv of the Ianuary 30, 1989, Federal Register (pages 4722-4733). Copies orthe 
regulations may be obtained by contacting the Department of Agriculture agency with which this 
transaction originated. 

(BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE) 

(I) The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither 
it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal 
department or agency. 

(2) Where the prospective lower ticr participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in 
This certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 

WGt\-\ lu-"J (O\A.S \v-.>t--t\ 0 i'\. , In v. 
Orgllnizillion N:Jmc 

"Rio M\ Me..k LJe.\.\S RedWelOpMe.jf 
PRlAward Number or Project Name 

Namc:(s) and Titlc(s) of Authorized RcprcsentJlivc(s} 

Stgnoture(s) 

Form AO·tD.&8 ( Jl9!) 

00450·\ 

52 



Instructions for Certification 

I. By signing and sUbmitting this form, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the 
certification set out 00 the reverse side in accordance with these instructions. 

2. The certitication in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined tbat the prospective lower tier participant 
knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal 
Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available 
remedies, including suspension andlor debannent. 

3. The prospective lower tier participant sball provide immediate written notice to the person to 
which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its 
ceniftcation was erroneous when subnUlted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances. 

4. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," '"ineligible," "lower tier covered 
transaction:' ·~participant." uperson," "primary covered transaction," uprincipal/' "proposal," and 
·'voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage 
sections of rules implementing Ex<cutive Order 12549. You may contact the person to which this 
proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. 

5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this form that, should the proposed 
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction 
with a persoD who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation 
in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction 
originated. 

6. The prospective lower tier participant furtber agrees by submitting this form Omt it will include 
this clause titled "Certification Regarding Debartnen~ Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion 
- Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification, in aU lower tier covered transactions and in 
all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective partIcipant '" 
• lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is enoneous. A participant may decide the 
method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principles. Each participant may, but is 
not required to, check the Nonprocurement List. 

8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shaU be construed to require establishment of a system of 
records in order to render in good failh the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and 
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent 
person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a 
covered transaction knowingly entered into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who IS 

suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition 
to other remedies available to Ihe Federal Government, the department or agency with which this 
transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension andlor debarment. 

Form AD-l048 (1/92) 

00450-2 

53 



RD Instruction 1940.Q 
Exhibit A·I 

CERTIFICATION FOR COi'TRACTS. GRA1'1TS AND LOANS 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledgc and belief, that: 

I. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, 
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress 
in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant or Federal 
loan, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, 
grant or loan. 

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person 
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this Federal contract, grant or loan, the undersigned shall complete and submit 
Standard From - LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," in accordance with its instructions. 

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including contracts, subcontracts, and subgrants under 
grants and loans) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or 
entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352. title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to 
file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more 
than S 100,000 for each such failure. 

61t6!16 
(Name) (D.o.tc) 

ITitle) 

(08·21·91) PN 171 

00460·1 

54 



CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATION REGARDING WORKERS' 
COMPENSA nON INSURANCE 

State of California 

County of HlfMbold--r 

I am aware oflbe provisions of Sec lion 3700 oflbe Labor Code which require 
every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or to undertake 
self-insurance in accordance with Ihe provisions oflhal code, and I will comply with such 
provisions before commending the performance of the work of this Contract. 

I,., Jo. \l\,l~ CoVl.S.\Yvr.M ~"- ) j:"~(... 
(N:tme Dr ConuOlctor) 

(Signature ofConmclor) 

Date: 6b~ lib 
I , 

00470-1 

55 



LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS 

;-';OTE: In .ccordance "itb Supplementary Conditio n SC-6.0611- Ibt Conlr3cler sball nol.,urd "'ork ulucd OIl mort IfI:ln 
fifty percent (50%) orlhe Conlncf Prict 10 Subcontractors ,,·i,boul prior "nUen .ppronl or the Owfter. 

s-r.<{ I-l W If ;!,r. 
r.. ... t ........... , CI'\- '!S$"~D 

po Bo~ $ (pc. 7 
E. ....... e c/4 qS"S"O<1--~G.Go7 

(Add additional sheets if necessary) 

BIDDER: tJ~W (P1f,SP.vv17:hl. / :hte- ~ 4/~_2 __ 
Date: 6116/1& 

00480·1 

56 



AMERICAN IRON AND STEEL REQUIREMENT CERTIFICATION 

The Contractor acknowledges to and for the benefit of the City of Rio Dell "Purchaser" and the 
State or California "State" that it understands the goods and services under this Agreement are being 
funded with monies made available by the Clean Water State Revolving Fund andlor Drinking 
Water State Revolving Fund that have statutory requirements commonly known as "American Iron 
and Steel;" that requires all or the iron and steel products used in the project to be produced in the 
United States ("American Iron and Steel Requirement") including iron and steel products provided 
by the Contactor pursuant to this Agreement. The Contractor hereby represents and warrants to and 
for the benefit of the Purchaser and the State that (a) the Contractor has reviewed and understands 
the American Iron and Steel Requirement, (b) all of the iron and steel products used in the project 
will be andlor have been produced in the United States in a manner that complies with the American 
Iron and Steel Requirement, unless a waiver of the requirement is approved, and (c) the Contractor 
will provide any further verified information, certification or assurance of compliance with this 
paragraph, or information necessary to support a waiver of the American Iron and Steel 
Requirement, as may be requested by the Purchaser or the State. Notwithstanding any other 
provision oflhis Agreement, any failure to comply with this paragraph by the Contractor shall 
permit the Purchaser or State to recover as damages against the Contractor any loss, expense, or cost 
(including without limitation attorney's fees) incurred by the Purchaser or State resulting from any 
such failure (including without limitation any impairment or loss of funding, whether in whole or in 
part, from the State or any damages owed to the State by the Purchaser). While the Contractor has 
no direct contractual privity with the State, as a lender to the Purchaser for the funding ofils project, 
the Purchaser and the Contractor agree that the State is a third-party beneficiary and neither this 
paragraph (nor any other provision of this Agreement necessary to give this paragraph force or 
effect) shan be amended or waived without the prior written consent of the State. 

00490-\ 

57 



CONTRACT PROVISIONS 
RELATIVE TO THE UTILIZATION OF 

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE 

Compliance with the requirements of this document and attachments satisfies the Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise (DBE) requirements for this construction contract. Failure to take the six (6) 
anirmative steps listed under Good Foitb Effort Requirements, prior to bid opening and to 
submit EPA Form 6100-3 Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program DBE Subcontractor 
Performance Form and EPA Form 6100-4 Disadvantoged Business Enterprise Program DBE 
Subcontractor Utilization Form with the bid package shall cause Ihe bid to b. rejected os a 
non-responsive bid. 

The City of Rio Dell advises potential bidders tbat the project //lay be funded in whole or part 
with federal loan or grant funds through the California Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund, 
and, therefore federal Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) regulations apply to this project. 
(Reference 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 33 - Participarion by Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprises in U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Programs). 

The DBE rule requires that responsive bid shall conform with "Good Faith Efforts" to increase DBE 
awareness of procurement opportunities through race/gender neutral efforts. Racelgender neutral 
efforts are ones which increase awareness of contracting opportunities in general, including 
outreacb, recruitment and technical assistance. Bidder agrees that it will cooperate with and assist 
the City of Rio Dell in fulfilling the DBE Good Faith Effort Requirement achieving "fair share 
objectives" and will exercise "Good Faith Efforts" to achieve such minimum participation of small, 
minority and women owned businesses. In particular, in submitting a bid, the bidder shall, in the 
selection of any and all contractors, subcontractors, and vendors for the procurement of equipment, 
supplies, construction, and services related to the project, at a minimum, undertake the following 
affirmative "Good Faith Efforts" steps: 

Good Faith Effort Requiremenls 

I. Include disadvantaged business enterprises on solicitation lists. 

2. Assure that disadvantaged business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential 
sources, in a way that encourages and facilitates their participation in the competitive 
process. 

3. Divide total requirements, when economically feasible, into small tasks or quantities to 
permit maximum participation by disadvantaged business enterprises. 

4. Establish delivery schedules, when the requirements of the work pennit, which will 
encourage participation by disadvantaged business enterprises. 

5. Use the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration and tbe U.S. Minority 
Business Development Agency, as appropriate; and 

6. lfony contractor awards subagreemonts, require the contractor to take the affirmative steps 
in paragraphs (I) through (5) of this section. 

00495·1 

58 



Each bid must include submission of EPA Form 6100-3 Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program 
DBE Subcontractor Performance Form and EPA Form 6100-4 Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
Program DBE Subcontractor Utilization Form with the bid package. 

Other Requirements: 

I. The apparent successful low bidder must submit documentation showing that, prior to bid 
opening, tbe required "Good Faith Efforts" were made. The documentation must be 
received by the City of Rio Dell within ~working days following bid opening, or 
within~ working days after request for documentation if initial apparent successful low 
bidder is disqualified for any reason, except EPA Forms 6100-3 and 6100-4 which are to be 
submitted with the bid. Failure to submit these forms with the bid will c.use the bid to 
be rejected as non-responsive_ 

2. If the apparent successful low bidder is rejected or considered as non-responsible andlor has 
any non-responsive low DBE sub-bidder, a complete explanation must be provided to the 
City of Rio Dell. 

3. Using Attachment B (Verification of Qualification), apparent successful low bidder must 
provide evidence of certification by a federal, state, or local government entity for each 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise firm to be utilized. Such certification documentation 
shall be submitted within ~ working days following bid opening. 

4. If additional procurement becomes necessary after the award of the prime contract, the 
"Good Faith Efforts" shall be applied, and, if Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
subcontracts are awarded, Attachment B (Verification of Qualification) shall be provided to 
the City of Rio Dell by the prime contractor within 10 working days following the award of 
each new subcontract. 

5. Any deviation from the information contained in EPA Forms 6100-3 and 6100-4 shall not 
result in a reduction of Disadvantaged Business Enterprise participation without prior 
approval of the City of Rio Dell. 

6. Failure of the apparent low bidder to perform the six affirmative "Good Faith Effons" steps 
prior to bid opening andlor to submit EPA Forms 6100-3 and 6100-4 with its bid will lead to 
its bid being declared non-responsive by the City of Rio Dell. The City of Rio Dell may 
then award the contract to the next low responsive, responsible bidder meeting the 
requirements of these contract provisions. 

7. Prime contractor must pay its subcontractor(s) for satisfactory performance no more than 30 
days from the prime contractor's receipt ofpayment. 

8. Prime contractor must provide each proposed subcontractor/supplier/vendor copies of EPA 
Form 6100-2 and EPA Form 6100-3. 

9. Each bid must include submission of EPA Form 6100-3 and EPA Form 6100-4. 

00495-2 

59 



Fair Share Objccti\'cs 

Interested bidders are .dvised that the following fair share objectives have been established for this project. 
Fulfillment of the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise requirement is based on documented completion of the 
Good Faith Effort Requirements, not level of Disadvantaged Business Enterprise participation 
proposed/achieved. 

Minority Business Enterprise 
Women's Business 

Enternrise 

CONSTRUCTION 11% 4% 

SUPPLIES 2% 1% 

SERVlCES 4% 2% 

EQUIPMENT 2% 2% 

Semiannual DBE Utilization Reporting 

In order to fulfill federal reporting requirements, the selected prime contractor must, using 
Attachment F (MBElWBE Utilizationl, report to City of Rio Dell on a semiannual basis, their 
utilization of Minority Business Enterprise and Women's Business Enterprise 
subcontractor/supplier/vendors. The City of Rio Dell will compile all MBElWBE Utilization 
reports from prime cODtr.ctor(s) and sub-contractor(s) into one report and submit to SWRCB by 
April 15 and October 15 of each year until the last claim is submitted. 

00495-3 

60 



AITACHMENTB 

MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISElWOMEN'S BUSINESS ENTERPRISE 
(MBEIWBE)' 

VERIFICATION OF QUALIFICATION 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
DIVISION OF DRINKING WATER AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT 

Finn Name: Phone: 

(70 7) Lj Y 3 - !.{ ~ 77 ~\(. -Z~be. \ '"\r, 
Address: 

l3 &>)1-1?-.O. 6~3E" ~r~ cA 9G5o~ 
Principal Service or Product: / 

H(M.I \i:'Ni\ '1( v~ 'r-~ n.0\ 

t-MBE O-WBE 

0- Prime Contractor If. Supplier of Material/Service O· Subcontractor 0- Broker 

0- Sole Ownership J!(. Corporation 0- Partnership 0- Joint Venture 

Names of Owners Percent MBE-
Ownership Ethnic Identity' 

F(C\M~ '2 I.\. \, ~\. 60 rtr~f~c... 
A:}"I.U"' C<.4\. 

i3:.rbc:v "'- Z~be,.,\ 40 -
Ag<ncy Certifying MIlE MIlE Qualifi,,,ion C&t.l/rtl/lll.5 (~+. of l'rCWI.5for-n.. +0 ...... ) 
Certifying Agency Address 0;..".-..-...."",, , c.~ c.rtifyJn~ rncy Phone 

/S;l."3 14 tl< ~t. rl\~ 1"l '!5'i! 1\ (91(, . '3~1-\ - \ 100 

CertifICation number D .... C.rtlfIed ! I / 
'-\'li<il:3 I;/. 1"1 Zoot 

Submitted by: i3a" b~ '2a.b.e.\ 
0 .... : 

6/16/16 
1 Rerer \0 definitions on the next page. 

COPH MaEwac Veriicalion; rev 5IO'l; 

WBE 

-
-

61 



MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISEIWOMEN'S BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBEIWBE) rUSEPA DEFINITIONS· 

A MBE Is a business that is. (1) at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more minority Individuals. or. in the case 
of a publicly owned business. at least 51 percent of the stock is owned by one or more minOrity individuals; and (2) whose 
daily business operations are managed and directed by one or more of the minority owners. 

A WBE is a business that is. (1) at least 51 percent owned by one or more women. or. in the case of a publicly owned 
business. at leasl 51 percent of the slock is owned by one or more women; and. (2) whose daily business operations are 
managed and direcled by one or more of the women owners. 

MINORITY INDIVIDUALS INCLUDE: 

(a) American Indians 

Persons having origins in any of the original peoples of North America. To qualify in this grouP. a person must be a 
citizen of the United Siaies and meel one or more qualifying criteria including: 

(1) Be at leasl one·fourth Indian descent (as evidenced by regislration wilh Ihe Bureau of Indian Affairs); 

(2) Characleristic Indian name; 

(3) Recognition In the community as an Indian; 

(4) MembelOhip In a tribe. band or group of American Indians (recognized by the Federal Govemmenl). as 
evidenced by a tribal enrollment number or similar Indication; and 

(5) Characteristic Indian appearance and features. 

(b) Black Americans 

U.S. citizens. other than Hispan'c. having origins in any of the black racial groups of Africa. 

(c) Asian Americans 

U.S. cilizens having origins in any of the origlna) peoples of Ihe Far East, Southern Asia, the Indian subcontinent or 
Ihe Pacific Islands. This area includes. for example. China, Japan. Konaa. the Philippine Islands and Samoa. The 
Indian subcontinent takes in the countries of India. Pakislan. Bangladesh. Sri Lanka. Nepal. Sikkim, and Bhutan. 

(d) Hispanic Americans 

U.S. citizens of Mexican. Puerto Rican, Cuban. or other Spanish culture or origin. regardless of race. Only those 
persons from Cenlral and South American countries who are of Spanish Origin. descent. or culture should be 
included in this calegory. Persons from Braz~ . Guyana. Surinam or Trinidad. for example. would be classified 
according to their race and would nol necessarily be Included in the Hispanic category. In addition. the calegory does 
not include persons from Portugal, who should be classified according 10 race. 

(e) American Eskimos and American Aleuts 

COPH M8EWBE Veri!icaticn; rev 5109; 

62 



ft EA~ United SIaIU 
~~ EflvirCMl811111 ProlQct/on 
~.. Agl!l1CY 

O~!8 Control No 2090·0030 
Approved: 8/13/2013 

Approval Expires:8/31/201S 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program 
DBE Subcontractor Performance Form 

This form is intended to capture the DBE' subcontractor'sl description of work to be performed and the price of 
the work submitted to the prime contractor. An EPA Financial Assistance Agreement Recipient must require its 
prime contractor to have its DBE subcontractors complete this form and include all completed forms in the prime 
contractors bid or proposal package. 

Subcontractor Name -rrlUil WeJ/ ~~e 
Bid/ Proposal No. Point of Contact 

/3GW bwr.. Za k I 

. Ul 
Prime Contractor Name 
Wct~ \.w..J c.., .... ~ N..r .. O.... 1=" YL 

Contract Item Number Description of Work Submitted to the Prime Contractor Price of Work 
Involving Construction, Services, Equipment or Supplies Submitted to the 

Prime Contractor 

1$,(1,1+-1 [:,rtwG{ /+etvl I Aspblt rfr:. V I (S-etlli~ If!, (Yl:O. DO 

/ 

DBE Certified By: ~ DOT - SBA Meets/ exceeds EPA certification standards? 

Other: vY'ES NO Unknown 

1 A DBE 15 a Disadvantaged, Minority, or Woman Business Enterprise that has been certified by an entity from which EPA accepts certifications as 
described In 40 CFR 33.204·33.205 or certified bV EPA. EPA accepts certifications from entities that meet or exceed EPA certiflcatlon sti1ndards a5 

described in 40 CFR 33.202. 

2 Subcontractor Is defined as a company, firm, Joint venture, or individual who enters Into an agreement with a contractor to provide services 
pursuant to an EPA award of financial assistance. 

EPA FORM 6100·3 (DBE Subcontractor Performance Form) 

63 



ft EA~unitejStates 
.... ~ Environmenl,,1 Proti!Cron 
,." Ag!n~ 

OMB Control No: 2090·0030 
Approved. B/13/2013 

Approval E""lres: 8/31/2015 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program 
DBE Subcontractor Perfonnance Form 

I certifY under penalty of perjury that the forgoing statements are true and correct. Signing this form does not 
signifY a commitment to utilize the subcontractors above. I am aware of that in the event ofa replacement of a 
subcontractor, I will adhere to the replacement requirements set forth in 40 CFR Part 33 Section 33.302 (cl. 

Subcontractor Signature Print Name 

Title Date 

The public reporting and recordkeeplng burden for this collection of information is estimated to average three (3) hours 

per response. Send comments on the Agency's need for this Information, the accuracy of the provided burden 

estimates, and any suggested methods for minimizing respondent burden, including through the use of automated 

collection techniques to the Director, Collection Strategies Division, u.S. Environmental Protection Agency (2822T), 1200 

Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, D.C. 20460. Include the OMB control number in any correspondence. Do not send 

the completed form to this address. 

EPA FORM 6100·3 (DBE Subcontractor Perfonnance Form) 

64 



OMB Control No: 2090-0030 
Approved: 8/13/2013 

Approval Expires: 8/31/2015 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program 
DBE Subcontractor Utilization Form 

This form is intended to capture the prime contractor's actual and/or anticipated use of identified certified DBEI 
subcontractors' and the estimated dollar amount of each subcontract. An EPA FinanCial Assistance Agreement 
Recipient must require its prime contractors to complete this form and include it in the bid or proposal package. 
Prime contractors should also maintain a copy of this form on file. 

Prime Contractor Name Project Name 

WctlA\~ Co t>'-S h-u c..1i 0 V\. -hAc... ~:c Ue.n tAeAro We.Jls R~.JOf.....q 
Bid/ Proposal No. Assistance Agreement 10 No. (if known) Point of Contact 

4I-6-PJ fI (, 'j 19 3 ~ WCiI \.t \ V ...-.u\ 
Address 8;'0 H-il ~ Dr. . 'G: vj~\u.,. I cl'\ '15")0"3 
Telephone No. [ 1) ~ Email Address 

70 68 - 0 (5"0 ~~@. w .. j-.lc.-o-<- -co .... 
Issuing/Funding Entity: 

U-f,'{/-!v j2vrc. ) '" ' CQ 

I have identified potential DBE 
I .6ES I _NO 

certified subcontractors 
If yes, please complete the table below. If no, please explain: 

Subcontractor Name/ Company Address/ Phone/ Email Est. Dollar Currently 
Company Name Amt OBE 

Certified? 

FY...~ ~{ frvG~r~ PO 80~ 6:{ 36 We./CA,c.A q~o;l., 
(707) qq3-"~77 //3,000 Ye.S :r:;.,. ..... 

Continue on back if needed 

1 A OBE Is iJ Disadvantaged, Minority, or Woman Business Enterpr ise that has been certified by an entity from which EPA accepts certifications as 
described In 40 CFR 33 .204-33.205 or cert ified by EPA. EPA accepts certifications from entities that meet or exceed EPA certification standards as 
described In 40 CFR 33.202. 

2 Subcontr.1ctor Is defined as a company, finn , Joint venture. or Individual who enters into an agreement with a contractor to provide 
services pursuant to an EPA award of financia l assistance. 

EPA FORM 6100-4 (DBE Subcontractor Utilization Form) 

-

65 



II> EAtl\. Umted States o jI-\ ~~~'~~men!,)1 Prctl!cl'on 
OMB Control No 2090·0030 

Approved: 8/13/2013 
Approval Expires: 8/31/2015 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program 
DBE Subcontractor Utilization Form 

I certifY under penalty of perjury that the forgoing statements a re true and correct. Signing this form does not 
signifY a commitment to utilize the s ubcontractors above. I am aware of that in the event of a replacement of a 
subcontractor, I will adhere to the replacement requirements set forth in 40 CFR Part 33 Section 33.302 (c). 

Prime Contractor Signature Print Name 
_J 

~~ lJct h { "-1.01 j;7&.. 0L~ -
Title Date 

Pr~'5;~t 6/16/ (6 

The public reporting and record keeping burden for this collection of information Is estimated to average three (3) hours 

per response. Send comments on the Agency's need for this information, the accuracy of the provided burden 

estimates, and any suggested methods for minimizing respondent burden, including through the use of automated 

collection techniques to the Director, Collection Strategies Division, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (2822T), 1200 

Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, D.C. 20460. Include the OMB control number in any correspondence. Do not send 

the completed form to this address. 

EPA FORM 6100-4 (DBE Subcontractor Utilization Form) 

66 



Rio Dell Ci~J' Hall 
67.1 Wildwood A veil lie 
Rio Dell, C4 95.162 
(707) 764-3532 
riotiellcily.cOIII 

September 20, 2016 

TO: Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

CiTY Of 

~ DELL 
¥ 

LAl.if (JrR "-1A 

SUBJECT: Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Downtown City Parking Lot 
Improvements 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Provide direction to staff. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The City Manager will provide an update on the final work being undertaken to modifY the 
City's downtown parking lot. This includes the possible installation of a fence and 
recommendations to move forward on this project, if desired. 

11/ 

67 



Rio Dell City Hall 
675 Willbvood Avellue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-35.I2 
r ioilellci(I '.CIJ/II 

September 20, 2016 

TO: Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

CITY 01 

J~ DELL 

SUBJECT: Discussion and Possible Action on Bottled Water Proposal from Councilmember 
Thompson 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Provide direction. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

Councilmember Jack Thompson has requested that an item be placed on the agenda concerning a 
proposal related to bottled water. Mr. Thompson has provided the attached infonnation and 
requested time to speak to the Council on this matter. 

III 

68 



69 



9109 

05220106 

, \ 

" 

~-, 
I 

/ 05220107 

... - ....... ""'- -
-- ... ....-, 

05204104 

fJao Tool ODtions 

" 

--

05204105 
i • 

I 

\ 
\ 

" 

'. 
\ 

, 

~ ". ~ Y~ ~ 
~ ~ o. 

7::-~ ~ ~ 
~ .,.", 

>!> 
.' ... 

\ 

. ~ , .\ ~ .. 
\. ;' \ 

'-., .' ~ \" . , 
'< --

\ y"'" 
{ ~ \ \ .. .. ~ \ 

\ . .' 
\ t ~.\ 

'\ \ 
; '\,;. 
\"; 'L ...... , , , 

\. ~ " 

70 



Estimating Wal~: c'(\',\ Ra:~s. EC 1369 Page l of6 

, OSU Oregon State University 

. " . - :": :; \ T! NSION H" MF . ONlINC (ATA LOO::; ORDfR!"'G INFORHATlON 

Extension Service 

Estimating Water Flow Rates 

EC 1369 
Reprinted $cptember 1994 
Wl. Trimmer 

Do lOU ,,"ant to print a copy! 
We recommend downloacling tlte pnnl \ Cf1ilOn (199 10;) 
Fusl downJood the fttc .-\dobc Rc.,dcr. ir~ au don', aJr'Cad~ hal e it 

Contents 

Method I--Dlsch.rge rrom a pip. 
FIgure I 
Tahle I 
Table 2 
Method ~--A\erage cross section 
FIgure 2 
Method 3-TImed \olume 
Figure 3 
~'Iethod 4- Prcssure and nozzle sIze 
F,gure .j 
Table 3 
l. lst of equl \ "icnts 

Increasing competitIOn for water resources has made water conservation a high priOrity, Measuring the flow 
rate of water is the first slep 10 good Waler management. All water right holders In Ihe Slate of Oregon mUSI 
be able 10 measure the now rate of the water being diverted 

If a flow meier, flume, or welf isn't available, there are several methods avaIlable to esllmale now rate that 
you can do WIth available tools like stopwatches, rulers, and buckets. 

The usual unIt measuring now rate for irngallOn water rights is a cubic foot per second (cfs), This is ",,,ter 
nowing through a cross-sectional area of I ft 2 al a velocity of I foot per second, and it's sometimes called a 
second-foot 

A common dIversIon rate tR eastern Oregon mIght be I cfsl40 acres Here are some handy conversions (see 
page 4 for others)' I cfs is about 450 gallons per mtRute; I cfs is about I acre-inch per hour, I cfs is aboul2 
acre-feet per day. 

Propeller now meters, weIrs, and flumes provide the most accurate measures offlow rale, but in many 
Instances you must make an estImate without them Here are four methods to estimate Irrigalton diversIOns, 

top 

Method I 

Discharge from a pipe 

hltp:llextension.oregonstale, edul cataloglhtmllec/ec 13691 .. 512312009 71 



Estimating Water Flow Rates, EC 1369 Page 2 of6 

(f waler can freely drop from a pIpe, you can esllmale Ihe flow rale by measuring length wIth nothing more 
than a carpenter's rule When Ihe pipe i; flowing full, place the rule as sho"n In F,gure I and measure a 
hOrizontal d,slance when the venlcal drop Y • 13 IOches 

Fmd Ihe proper pIpe sIZe in Table I, and the dIscharge IS In gallons per minute (gpm) (fthe pIpe Isnit level, 
use a plumb bob 10 measure the venical drop Y 

Figure I -Measunng horizontal dislance (X) of a pipe flowing full .... ilh venical drop Y=IJ". 

top 

Example 1. An 8-inch-dlameter pipe is flowing full, and the horizontal d,stance X is measured to be 20 
mches From Table I, the flow rate IS 1,005 gpm. 

If the pIpe IS flowing only panially full, find the rallo of the unfilled portIon of pIpe to the d .. meter of the 
pIpe to estimate flow rate in gallons per minute, as sho .... TI in Table 2 

lOP 

http://extension.oregonstate.edulcatalog/htmllec/ecI3691 5/2312009 72 



P"omotions 

Systems 

Foodservlce, 
Beverage, Coffee 
and Ice Filters 

Refrigerator Filters 

Pool & Spa Filters 

RO Membranes 

UV Systems & 
Lamps 

(/) 

:s: Faucets w .... 
> w Water Softening a: 
it Systems 

Parts & 
Accessories 

Fittings, Valves, 
Tubing 

Water Coolers & 
Fountains 

Shower, RV, 
Marine Filters 

Water Cups 

Water Bottles 

Water Testing & 
Monitoring 

~ nl' ~ 

Fresh Water Commercial Reverse Osmosis System by AXEON 

• 

4000 gpd 

Part Number: CRO-4000-FW-2 

• Capadty: 4000 gpd 

• System Type: Free Standing 

• Country of Origin: Made in the USA 

• Membrane Quantity: 2 

• Membrane Size: 4" x 40" 

View Details 

Fresh Water Commercial Reverse Osmosis System by AXEON 
__ s 7000gpd 

• • 

Part Number: CRO-7000-FW-2 

• Capacity: 7000 gpd 

• System Type: Free Standing 

• Country of Origin: Made in the USA 

• Membrane Quantity: 4 

• Membrane Size: 4" x 40" 

View Details 

Flexeon CT-4000 Commercial Reverse Osmosis System 4000 

•••• gpd 
:;- ~:r~ .. . 

• 
• • 

Part Number: 204384 

Alternate Part Number: 200034 

• capacity: 4000 gpd 

• System Type: Free Standing 

• Country of Origin: Made in the USA 

• Membrane Quantity: 2 

• Membrane Size: 4" x 40" 

View Details 

~4,999·99 
Qty: 1 

, ..... \~ iC-r"'~~' 

Compare 

:0;6,649·<)<) 
Qty: 1 

1IDP~cWa" 

Compare 

MSRP: $8,991.99 

84,-).29·99 
Qty: 1 

_TOiifoIlT~: . 
Compare 

m 
r--

6/3/20161 :05 PM 



Ul 
~ 
w 
~ 

[ij 
0:: 

-!< 

1 of~ 

PayPaI CREDIT 
Gel G Monlhs 10 pay on S99 .. 
Clleck ou: with P~yPoi 
1Jr ::! choOOl! PG'tPol CrecM 

Pumps & Motors 

Health and 
Recreation 

Home Brewing 

Hydroponics 

HVAC 

Clearance 

Specials 

KOHle 

Watts R4X40-2 Commercial Reverse Osmosis System 4400 gpd ';', 
• 

Part Number: R4X40-2 

• Capacity: 4400 gpd 

• System Type: Free Standing 

• Membrane Quantity: 2 

• Membrane Size: 4" x 40" 
View Details 

Flexeon CT-SOOO Commercial Reverse Osmosis System 5000 

•• IIS gpd 
":' 1'1'" .... i ; . .,- . I!.' • 

Part Number: 204405 

Alternate Part Number: 200035 

• Capacity: 5000 gpd 

• System Type: Free Standing 

• Country of Origin: Made In the USA 

• Membrane Quantity: 3 

• Membrane Size: 4" x 40" 

View Details 

Watts R4X40-3 Commercial Reverse Osmosis System 6600 gpd 

" '=' , • Part Number: R4X40-3-230 

• Capacity: 6600 gpd 

• System Type: Free Standing 

• Membrane Quantity: 3 

• Membrane Size: 4" x 40" 

View Details 

Flexeon CT-7000 Commercial Reverse Osmosis System 7000 .S.. gpd i ... " _n .. ' 11 • 

f;4,O<)9.4.)9 

Compare 

MSRP: $10,028.39 

:;5,199·99 
Qty: 1 
;~ .. ~-, i.:!~· - ~;'·I ' 
'AO~H'O.tWir\l c,. 

Compare 

84.6 99.99 
Qty: 1 

~'RictlAlrJ! 

Compare 

MSRP: $11,177.16 

<:t ,... 

<>13/2016 I lOS PM 



• • 

(jj 

~ mO'lU 99.99%01 c:rsts. 
:> IW;M"'_~ 
~ II-tum ~ dI.qiI fiIhn 
-I< !IIl!tres no taak or drain 

. .$!l0II rala - up 101II1II 

., (If; 

Part Number: 204426 

Alternate Part Number: 200036 

• Capacity: 7000 gpd 

• System Type: Free Standing 

• Country of Origin: l'1ade In the USA 

• Membrane Quantity: 4 

• Membrane Size: 4" x 40" 

View Details 

........ _ . .... v ") ~\""":'I-'VVV-~'IU-'U-"'UII-gp(1 . t.n 
r--

$S·5 .... Q·<)<) 
Qty: 1 

6110~· 

Compare 

6/3/20161 :05 PM 



Price Chart Pricing quote 6/6/2009 Page I of 2 

Price Chart 

Request a Quote On-line, Email Us or call toll free 877-262-0237 for 
more information. In addition to these prices there is a one-time artwork 
set-up fee ($100 for two colors) and shipping costs. All prices listed 
below include a clear bottle with flat cap, a two-color label and FOB 
our plant. 

1. More colors are available at an additional charge. 
2. Blue bottles are an additional $0.10 per case. 
3. White sport caps are an additional $0.50 per case (not available on 12 

oz. 

12 Oz. Bottle, ~pring Water - Only available with the Flat Cap 

No. of Case Total Total Price' Price' Total 
Cases WeIght Weight Bottles Bottle Case Price 

40 22lbs 880lbs 960 $.53 $12.75 $510.00 
80 " 1.760 Ibs 1920 $.41 $9.75 $780.00 
120 • 2.640lbs 2.880 $.36 $8.75 $1.050.00 
180 " 3.960Ibs. 4.320 $.35 $8.50 $1,530.00 
240 • 5.2801bs 5.760 S.34 $8.25 $1,980.00 
420 • 9,2401bs 10080 $.31 $7.50 $3,150.00 

16,9 Qz, Bottl~, Spring W~ter 

No, of Case Total Total Price' Price I Total 
Cases WeIght Weight Bottles Bottle Case Price 

40 30lbs 1.200 Ibs 960 $.54 $13.00 $ 520.00 
80 " 2.4001bs 1920 $.42 $10.00 $ 800.00 
120 " 3,600 Ibs 2,880 $.38 $9.00 $1,080.00 
180 " 5,4001bs 4,320 $.36 $ 8.75 $1,575.00 
240 " 7,200 Ibs 5,760 $.35 $8.50 $2,040.00 
420 " 12,600 10.080 $.32 $ 7.75 $3,255.00 

Ibs 

20 Oz. Bottle, Spring Water 

No. of Case Total Total Price' Price' Total 
Cases Weight Weight Bottles Bottle Case Price 
36 36lbs 1.296lbs 864 $.56 $13.50 $486.00 
54 " 1,944lbs 1,296 $.53 $12.65 $ 683.10 

http://www.crystalspringsok.netlpriccchart.htmi 6/6/2009 76 



-.,j 
-.,j 

Locutinn wuuld be the 11ainlcr strl"C1 spring tlUlt was used from 191710 lillthe wood water tank helow the prc~cnl silver SIl.'Cllank 

Development uf this resource \\'Ould make numerous jubs in 10\\11. 

Tuping the spring w.lIer (hilt flow on' orthe Rellevicw urea into the tim in liS nood wnler \\'ould he limilcd only hy the "mount of slomgc. 

Osmusis WOIh .. 'f system producing "SOU gal aLlay cust $4.KIJ(UHl. 

I 111111 or 74M gnl cnst S IJn);! reT ~al 

2" frtf' now pipt' OrWl1trf ta!:ll -128117. I unit :a 14K gill !:lIst S2 III 

Ida)'S per )1!ar Igal per minutcl'lnlCS minutesl .:nl per hour Gul peT 11,,), (IO) 12 tr/. huUcs per gnl I< () 2001, p..-r C'" ( 1 57) 1(, () Ill. per g.lI 

per dOl)' per day btltllc rL'f UlUt 

I IHO j 3H I ltfl 22MO I H720 547200 328320 SM5 

2U09 whoh.:salc price per holtlc 031 053 U)2 

tntnl snl~ pt.-r day SH,IJ,(IJl ,UO S174,11O'1.60 SI ,812'H) 

CI)~t J 13 nf whnlt.."Snlc puce S I IlJ S56,544 on S5K,n03211 SftI)·I .30 

IMn )1nssihle sllles per yellr SIO,I77,920,OO SIO,440,57600 

discollnh:d RCI% yearly pwtit S (121 S2,II35,5H4 1111 S2,IIHH,I15211 SI20 H(, 

costco price 78/24cD..<ie:; for S 48').99 or S.27() per hoUIe $ 120.8(, 1 5665 houles = $ .nZl each 

I unit or 74K Sill Of 56(,5 houles L"Ost S2.M t)f .0035 L"ch. 



Rio Dell Ci(1' Hall 
675 Wildwood AI'el/ lle 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
riodellci(l'. COlli 

September 20, 2016 

TO: Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

LAlJfOfl'\L.'\. 

SUBJECT: Discussion and Possible Action Authorizing Staff to Advertise a Request For 
Proposal (RFP) Related to the Replacement of the Waterline Along Old Ranch 
Road. 

IT IS RECOMMENDED rnA T THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Authorize staff to advertise the RFP. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

Staff has prepared an RFP for waterline placement along Old Ranch Road. This segment of the 
water system is severely degraded and prone to failure. During last year's water rate adjustment, 
a separate pressure zone was created in this location and all costs associated with this project will 
be borne by the residents of that pressure zone. 

This project replaces the existing above-ground Old Ranch Road waterline with a new above
ground water line. This option is being recommended by staff due to the urgent need to replace 
the line and this option also minimizes potential legal complications caused by modification of 
the waterlines route or configuration. 

Staffhas already provided notification of the City's intent to replace the water line. Once 
authorized by the Council, staff will begin notification of the impending construction of the 
project. 

II/ 

78 



Old Ranch Road Waterline Replacement 
Request for Proposal 

City of Rio Dell Issue Date: September 26, 2016 

675 Wildwood Due Date: October 21,2016 

Avenue Description: Waterline Replacement. 

Rio Dell CA 95562 Reference #: 

(707)764-3532 Auth. Date: 

Summary: The City of Rio Dell is seeking bids from Contractors to install an above
ground water service line along Old Ranch Road. 

REQUIRED LICENSING, ID>~W\\ 
The license required for this project is a minimum of"C-34" and/or "&6,, issued by the State of 

California. 

o Contractor has a C-34 license. Contractor's License # _______ Expires: __ _ 

o Contractor has a C-36 license. Contractor's License # _______ Expires: __ _ 

o Contractor has registered with the State of California's DIR (Department oflndustrial Relations) 
website: 

DIR Registration Number: __________ _ 

TIME OF COMPLETION: 

Bidder agrees to complete the project on or before a date specified in a signed contract. The City 
desires to complete this project as soon as possible. 

NON MANDATORY W ALK-THROUGH: 

A non-mandatory pre-quote conference will be held on October 12, 2016 at 10:00am at the Rio Dell 
City Hall Council Chambers. The group will then travel to the site along Monument Road. 

Page 10f9 

79 



TIMELINE: 

TIMELINE DATES 

RELEASE OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL September 26, 2016 

DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF October 10,2016 @ 5:00pm 
QUESTIONS 

Email: jensenr@cityofriodell.ca.gov 

CITY RESPSONSE TO QUESTIONS DUE October 12, 2016 @ 10:00am 
DATE 

DEADLINE FOR PROPOSALS TO BE October 21, 2016 @ 4:30pm 
RECEIVED 

TIlE FOLLOWl)iG DATES ARE TEl'oiATIYE AND 
MAYBE SUBJECT TO CH,uiGE 

OPENING OF SEALED BIDS October 21, 2016 @ 4:30pm 

RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD TO CITY November 1, 2016 
COUNCIL (AGENDA ITEM) 

CONTRACT FINALIZATION / NEW N~'mb" 8, 2~~~ CONTRACT START DATE 

Original copies of the proposal are to be received by 4:30 p.m. on October 21, 2016, 
Pacific Standard Time, at 675 Wildwood Avenue, Rio Dell CA 95562. Late, faxed, 
emailed, or unsigned proposals will be rejected. Post marks do not count. No additional 
information or documentation will be accepted from Proposers after the proposal due 
date. 

INTRODUCTION: 

The City of Rio Dell requires water line construction and demolition services for 2,200 feet 
of a new above-ground service line. This project replaces an existing line that sits mostly 
above ground and was installed 30+ years ago. This project will connect to four meters 
and will traverse one active landslide area where the final construction must allow for 
continued movement of the ground. Finally, this project includes the removal and 
disposal of the eXisting 780 feet of 1-inch poly pipe and 525 feet of existing 2-inch poly 
piping that currently services the customers in this area. 

Page 2of9 

80 



SCOPE OF SERVICES: 

Installation of Water Main and Services for Old Ranch Road Project: 

1. Contractor to install 2200' of new water main and tie in existing water lateral services. 
Main Line is to be placed on ground surface on East edge of roadway and t)4\Support 
brackets ever ten (10) feet to secure water main along roadway. 0 ~\5' \) 
2. Contractor to install shut off valve at the point of the new wat~~s connection to 
the water main along Monument Road. Contractor to install G5 Utility Box at ground level 
at this intersection with valve. 

3. All utility boxes shall be set on 6" of 3/4" or smaller gravel base and buried at grade. 
Minor hand excavation required. 

4. Contractor to install 1 st Water service including new meter box, new meter body 
(supplied by City) to new main line at 440ft from intersection of Monument and Old Ranch 
Road 

5. Contractor to install 2nd Water service including new meter box, new meter body 
(supplied by City) to new main line at 680ft from intersection of Monument and Old Ranch 
Road 

6. Contractor to install 3rt! Water service including new meter box, new meter body 
(supplied by City) to new main line at 800ft from intersection of Monument and Old Ranch 
Road 

7. Contractor to install break away section of Water main at 1660ft and 1725ft at location 
of the active slide. Contractor shall install a backflow prevention device at 1730ft. 

8. Contractor shall make recommendations and provide an additive bid for a solution that 
limits or eliminates water loss at the slide location due to the movement of the slide and or 
breakage of the line at the slide location. 

9. Contractor to install 4th Water service including meter box and new meter body 
(supplied by City) to new main line at 2200ft from intersection of Monument and Old 
Ranch Road 

10. Contractor to install 3/4" air relief valves at no less than six (6) high elevation points of 
water line: 

NOTE: relief valves to be installed at various elevated locations to remove any air for 
mainline which may cause system to become air locked. 

10. Contractor to remove and dispose of old exposed water main line. Disposal must be 
Page 30f9 

81 



done according to State law and receipts provided to the City for the disposition of the 
waste. 

780ft of 1" at various locations along roadway 

525ft of 2" at various locations along roadway ~ 

11. Contractor shall only access the project site via access pOirwt)~~fh Road and 
Monument Road. ~ 

12. Contractor is responsible to verify all conditions at the worksite; ANY inconsistencies 
shall be brought to the City's attention before proceeding with any work. 

13. Contractor shall provide notification to all downstream customers that water services 
will be closed when shutting down water from the main as necessary for construction. 

14. Contractor shall not shut down water services for more than four hours within any 24 
hour period. 

15. Contractor shall provide all necessary and required lab testing on new water main 
prior to activation. 

16. Contractor shall use 2" polyethylene piping rated at 250 PSI.Contractor shall use 
compression fittings to connect pipe segments. 

"See Attachment B for water service installation plan. 

SUBMISSION 

All proposals must be submitted in a sealed envelope clearly marked with the title of OLD 
RANCH ROAD WATERLINE BID 

o Late proposals will not be accepted. 
o Post marks do not count. 
o All proposals, whether selected or rejected, shall become the property of the City 

of Rio Dell. 

Proposals are to be sent to: 

OLD RANCH ROAD WATERLINE BID 
AnN: CITY MANAGER 
675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell CA 95562 

Page 4 of9 

82 



PREVAILING WAGE REQUIREMENT 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Labor Code of the State of California, the Department of 
Industrial Relations has made a determination of the rate of per diem wages to be paid on 
the prevailing rate of pay for regular, holiday and overtime work in the locality in which the 
public work is to be performed, for each craft, classification, or type of wor~i\rfneeded to 
execute the contract. All City of Rio Dell projects greater than $1,O00-:5~ s \t9at 
contractors adhere to Prevailing Wage requirements (CalifOrni~~S~' ,Sections 
1770 through 1775). The rates can be found online here: '&J IJ 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/DPreWageDetermination.htm 

PUBLIC RECORDS AND TRADE SECRETS 

All proposals and materials submitted become the property of the City and are subject 
to disclosure under the Public Records Act, Government Code section 6250 et seq. 

This Request for Proposal and all responses are considered public information, except 
for trade secrets specifically identified, which will be handled according to state 
statutes or other laws. Any information that contains trade secrets shall be 
communicated to county by the Proposer. Any page of the proposal that is deemed to 
be a trade secret by the Proposer shall be clearly marked "PROPRIETARY 
INFORMATION" at the top of the page in at least one-half inch (1/2") size letters. In 
the event that the county receives a request for disclosure of any such specifically 
identified information, prior to release of any such specifically identified information, the 
county will contact the Proposer and will not release the specifically identified 
information if the Proposer agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the county 
in any action brought to disclose such information. The Proposer, by submitting such 
information, agrees that the failure of county to contact Proposer prior to the release of 
such information will not be a basis for liability by city or any City employee to 
Proposer. 

EXCEPTIONS TO SPECIFICATION 

Proposers taking the exception to any part or section of these speCifications shall indicate 
such exceptions in the proposal. Failures to indicate any exceptions shall be interpreted 
as the Proposer's intent to fully comply with the specifications as written. However, 
conditional or qualified proposals are subject to rejecting in whole or in part. 

EXPENSES INCURRED IN PREPARING THE PROPOSAL 

The city accepts no responsibility for any expense incurred by Proposer in the 
preparation and presentation of a proposal, such expenses to be borne exclusively by 
the Proposer. 

Page 5 or9 

83 



PROPOSER INVESTIGATIONS 

Before submitting a proposal, each Proposer shall make all inVeStigation~ 
examinations necessary to ascertain the full performance of thiic }riWt 0 verify 
any representations made by the city that the Proposer will re ' 1blN"& leas of 
ignorance of such conditions and requirements resulting from . e to make such 
investigations and examinations will relieve the successful Proposer from its 
obligation to comply with every detail of all provisions and requirements of the contract 
documents or will be accepted as a basis for any claim whatsoever for any monetary 
consideration on the part of the Proposer. 

QUALIFICATIONS OF PROPOSERS 

Each Proposer, as part of its proposal, shall submit evidence that it has the 
necessary facilities, ability, and financial resources to furnish the services specified 
herein in a satisfactory manner. The Proposer shall also submit a written history, with 
references which will enable the county to be satisfied as to the Proposer's 
qualifications. Proposer shall list any and all contracts that Proposer failed to complete 
and the reason therefore. Proposer shall submit written permission for the county to 
contact any and all references and clients should the county request. Failure to qualify 
according to the foregoing requirements will justify proposal rejection by the county. 

PROPOSAL WITHDRAWAL 

No proposal can be withdrawn after it is filed unless the Proposer makes a request in 
writing to the city prior to the time set for the opening of proposals or unless the city 
fails to accept a proposal within ninety (90) days after the date fixed for opening 
proposals .. 

APPLICABLE LAW 

The solicitation and any contract resulting from this solicitation shall be governed in all 
respects by the laws of the State of California and any litigation with respect thereto 
shall be brought in the courts of this State in the County of Humboldt. The successful 
Proposer shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations. 

SELECTION PROCESS 

The award of contracts shall be at the sole discretion of the City. It is the intent to make 
an award to one Bidder for all services required, although the City reserves the right to 
make multiple awards, depending on the needs and best interests of the City. The City 
may accept or reject any or all proposals in whole or in part and may waive informalities in 

Page 6 of9 

84 



the process. The contents of the proposal of the selected Bidder will become the basis for 
a contractual obligation when the award is made. 

Award will be made to the lowest responsible/responsive Bidder. The City may make an 
award without further discussion of the proposals submitted; therefore, the proposal 
should be submitted on the most favorable terms that the Bidder can prop~<!~ 

Final contract will be subject to approval by the City Council. Th.mit@~fs the right to 
award a contract or contracts to Proposer that presents a propo~hich, in the sole 
judgment of the city, serves the best interest of the city. 

The city reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to waive minor irregularities in 
said proposals, or to negotiate deviations with the successful Proposer. 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Proposer warrants and covenants that no official or employee of the city, nor any 
business entity in which an official of the city has an interest, has been employed or 
retained to solicit or assist in the procuring of the resulting contract, nor any such person 
will be employed in the performance of such contract without immediate divulgence of 
such fact to the city. 

CONTRACT 

If a proposal is accepted, the successful Proposer will be required to sign a contract. 
Any executed contract will be substantially similar. 

PERIOD OF AWARD 

The expected period of the award is no more than December 31 , 2016, however city may 
extend project completion to June 30, 2016. 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 

The successful Proposer will be required to satiSfy the insurance requirements, as set 
forth by the City. The Proposer shall furnish the county with certificates and original 
endorsements affecting the required insurance coverage prior to execution of a contract 
by the city. In addition, the city may require additional insurance requirements 
dependent upon Proposer's proposed services. Insurance coverage shall be no less than: 

Combined single limit bodily injury liability and property damage liability -
$1,000,000 each occurrence. 

Vehicle I Bodily Injury combined single limit vehicle bodily injury and property 
damage liability -$500,000 each occurrence. 

Page 7of9 

85 



OWNERSHIP AND CONTROL: 

The successful Proposer will be required to provide information on its ownership and 
control as provided in 42 Code of Federal Regulations sections 455.101 and 455.104. 

ASSIGNMENT: ~~\~~ 
Any contract resulting from this proposal and any amendments ~uPPlements shall not 
be assignable by the successful Proposer. 

RESERVATION OF RIGHTS: 

The City of Rio Dell reserves the right to: 
o Cancel this RFP 
o Amend this RFP 
o Extend the deadline for submitting proposals 
o Waive minor irregularities or failures to conform to the RFP 

NEGOTIATIONS: 

The city reserves the right to negotiate prior to contract execution with any Proposer. 
Items that may be negotiable include, but are not limited to, types and scope of 
services and activities and performance criteria. Negotiable items must be consistent 
with the original proposal submitted, including proposed costs. Proposers may not 
change the terms of their proposal after bid opening. 

INQUIRY: 

Direct all questions regarding OLD RANCH ROAD WATERLINE BID to: 

City of Rio Dell 
Attn: City Manager 
675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 

All questions must be in written form. All questions and responses will be publicly 
posted. Questions must be received by October 10,2016 and answers provided at 
the Non-Mandatory walk through meeting on October 12, 2016. 

Page 8of9 

86 



ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Bid Sheet for Old Ranch Road 

B. Water Service Installation Plan 

C. Project Location Map 

Page 90f9 

87 



ATTACHMENT A: BID SHEET 

Old Ranch Road Waterline Replacement 

Request for Bids 

City of Rio Dell Issue Date: September 26,2016 

675 Wildwood Due Date: October 21, 2016 

Avenue Description: Waterline Replacement. 

Rio Dell CA 95562 Reference #: 

(707)764-3532 Auth. Date: 

Summary: The City of Rio Dell is seeking bids from Contractors to install an 

above-ground water service line along Old Ranch Road. 

BID SUMMARY: 

Total Bid Price (No Additive) ($-----

Total Bid Price (With Additive) : : _________ _ ($-----

SIGNATURE DATE ______ _ 

PRINT NAME 

COMPANY 

Page 1 of3 

88 



Intem Est. 
No . Qty. Unit Unit Price Total 

1 1 

2 1 

3 2200 

4 100 

5 220 

6 1 

7 

9 

10 

11 
12 

13 

14 
15 

16 
17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 
25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

SUB·TOTAl 

4 

2 

1 

5 

4 

4 

4 

8 

4 

1 

1 

6 

2 

4 

16 

l~1' 
IF 2" n .1. ~ Piping Rated at 250 PSI 
IF 1" CTS .. I.. pipe (for I 

II, •• .:. 

$( 
$( 

$( 

$( 
$( 
$( 

J ~( 

I $1 
I $( 

) $( 

) $( 

I $( 

Meter Boxes (Christy Fl09T 11" x 17" Fiberlyte with 
lid. $1 I $( 

CY 3.4" Gravel 
n· .1.<" , Check Valve 2" 

Valve 2" Ball Valve 

I Stop 
_ M~ter (~lInnlipri by iity) 

Meter Angle Stop 
. Meter" 

Meter I"n, .nlino ,... r Tail) 

\..UIH UII " 

ICosts 

Air Relief Valves 

; Steel Insert 1" 

; Steel Insert 2" 

Slip Joints 2" 

2" x 1" Service Saddles 

Itllllngs 2"-
JUs: (listed 

$1 

$1 
$( 
$( 

$( 

$( 
$( 

$1 

I $( 

I $( 

) $( 

-) $( 

I $( 

) $( 

) $( 

) $( 

r:::>C\r' J $( 

~,rr: f)\.\ '( \J I $( 

\\))\~ I $( 

$( ) $( 

$1 ) $( 

$1 ) $( 
}I I $( 

$( I $( 

$( ) $( 

$( ) $( 
$( ) $( 

$1. J $( 

$( I $( 

$1. I $( 

1$( 

ADDITIVE ITEM: Contractor recommendation for water loss prevention at slide. 

Page 2 of3 

1 

) 

89 



31 $( ) $( 
32 $( ) $( 
33 $( ) $( 
34 $( ) $( 

SUB-TOTAL I $( ) I $( 

TOTAL WITH ADDITIVE I $( ) I $( ITEM 

EXCEPTION TO SPECIFICATION: list all exceptions to specification on a separate piece of paper, attached to the bid 

THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED, SIGNED AND DATED FOR YOUR BID TO BE VALID. SIGNATURES OR 

HANDWRITING MAY BE REQUIRED ON OTHER PAGES OF THIS BID SCHEDULE OR REQUEST. 

SIGNATURE DATE _______ _ 

PRINT NAME ADDRESS 

COMPANY 

EMAIL 

PHONE 

Page 3 of3 

90 



ATTACHMENT B: Water Service Installation Plan 

GENERAl NOTES, 

1. SfJI,",CE SI.ODr.£ REOUtR£c FOIt ALL "'AlMS. OCO'T 
SlUl-

Z. INSTAlL CORPDAAnOH STOP WITH I«T SlOEWAYS, IN 
CPO; POSInON. 

30 nt£ CDRPQAAnON STOP TAP ~AU. 8£ MACE AS 
RECOUIID"otO elY Ttit" ""PC W.t.NUrACTUREI't. 

STANDARD METER ASSEM8. Y 

METERS AND CUSTOMER 
SERVICE VALVE 

3/4" CRUSHED ROCK 
SUPPLIED AND INSTALLED 
8Y CON TRACTOR 

• . THE WAltR S£/tVlC( SHAU. £xTtHO P[RP[NOICIJl)Jt TO THE 
ctHlEJIUHE Of 1ltE sm-:;tT fltOW TlIE W41'[R IoIAIH TD lkE 
IoIE'1tR STOP. 

~ STIJomNlO ,. S£A\o1C£ COMNECT,C»j US£O 'MTH lME F'CUOWlHC 
IoIrnR SIZES: 5/8" WElDf. J/." IoI£TER. *" ," "ETtA. 

e. HOT TAP TO IoWN ~"'LL NOT at "'l\-4N 18'" OF' A COUPUHC. 
..o~T. FlTnHC oq WlTll N III" Dr ANomER TAP. 

STANDARD 1" POLY 
SERVICE ASSEMBLY 1 

91 



c.. 
ro 
~ 
c 
o .... 
ro 
u 
o 
-l .... 
U 
Q) 
'--, o 
L 

CL 

U 
I
Z 
w 
~ 
:::r: 
u 

~ 
<l: 

92 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

To: City Council 

For Meeting of: September 20, 2016 

From: Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director e 
Through: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

September 15, 2016 

Text Amendment Section 17.30.020 Accessory Uses and Buildings of the Rio 
Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) 

Recommendation: 

That the City Council: 

1. Receive staff's report regarding amending Section 17.30.020 Accessory Uses and 
Buildings of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC); and 

2. Open the public hearing, receive public input and deliberate; and 

3. Find that the proposed text amendment is consistent and compatible with the General 
Plan and any implementation programs that may be affected; and 

4. Find that the proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and 

5. Adopt Ordinance No. 347-2016 amending Section 17.30.020 Accessory Uses and 
Buildings of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) to establish maximum building heights 
and floor areas based on the size of the parcel and to allow for exceptions by the 
Planning Commission when certain findings can be made; and 

6. Direct the City Clerk, within 15 days after adoption of the Ordinance, to post an adoption 
summary of the Ordinance with the names of those City Council members voting for or 
against, or otherwise voting in at least three (3) public places and to post in the office of 
the City Clerk a certified copy of the full text of the adopted Ordinance pursuant to 
Section 36933(a) of the California Government Code. 

Accessory Buildings Height, Floor Area Council September 20, 2016 

93 



Background 

At the Council meeting of September 6,2016 staff introduced Ordinance No. 347·2016 which 
would amend Section 17.30.020 Accessory Uses and Buildings of the Rio Dell Municipal Code 
(RDMC) to establish maximum building heights and floor areas based on the size of the parcel 
and to allow for exceptions by the Planning Commission when certain findings can be made. 

Again, staff has been contacted a number of times over the past few years regarding the 
construction of detached accessory structures and in particular the height limitation of fifteen 
(15) feet in the City's residential zones. Detached accessory buildings are allowed in residential 
zones provided they are accessory to and subordinate to the principal use of the site and serves 
a purpose which does not change the character of the principal residential use. 

As reported at your meeting of September 6, 2016, the Planning Commission recommended 
that height limits for detached accessory building on lots less than 20,000 square feet be limited 
to fifteen (15) feet and on lots greater than 20,000 square feet the height be limited to twenty 
(20) fee!. The Planning Commission also recommended limiting the size of buildings based on 
parcel sizes. Again, detached accessory buildings on lots less than 20,000 square feet would 
be limited to 1,000 square feet and on lots greater than 20,000 square feet limited to 1,500 
square feet. 

The Planning Commission also recommended an exception to allow for greater heights and 
floor areas with a Use Permit. As the Council is aware the Use Permit process requires 
notifying all property owners within 300 feet of the subject property. This allows neighbors to 
voice their concerns regarding the proposed exception. The "Exception" recommendations are 
for the most part the same exception provisions to exceed the allowable fence height 
regulations, Section 17.30.120 of the RDMC. 

There was little discussion and the Council chose not to make any modifications to the Planning 
Commission's recommendations. 

Zone Reclassification Required Findings 

1. The proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any 
implementation programs that may be affected. 

There are a number of polices in the General Plan which protect the character of neighborhoods 
and communities, reduce the potential for health and safety hazards, maintain and protect the 
visual qualities and property values of an area. The proposed amendments are consistent and 
compatible with the General Plan. 

2. The proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

Based on the nature of the project, staff has determined that the project is Statutorily Exempt 
pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEOA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California 
Code of Regulations. Pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEOA Guidelines this exemption 
is covered by the general rule that CEOA applies only to projects which have the potential for 

AccessOty Buildings Height, Floor Area Council September 20, 2016 

94 



causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there 
is no possibility that the project in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the 
project is not subject to CEQA. Based on the nature of the proposed amendments, to protect 
the character of neighborhoods and communities, reduce the potential for health and safety 
hazards, maintain and protect the visual qualities and property values of an area, staff believes 
there is no evidence to suggest that the minor amendments will have a significant effect on the 
environment. 

Attachments 

Attachment 1: Ordinance No. 347-2016 amending Section 17.30.020 Accessory Uses and 
Buildings of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) to establish maximum building 
heights and floor areas based on the size of the parcel and to allow for 
exceptions by the Planning Commission when certain findings can be made. 

AccessOl}' Bui/dings Height, Floor Area Council September 20, 2016 

95 



ORDINANCE NO. 347-2016 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL 
AMENDING SECTION 17.30.020 ACCESSORY USES AND BUILDINGS OF THE RIO 
DELL MUNICIPAL CODE (ROMe) TO ESTABLISH MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHTS 
AND FLOOR AREAS BASED ON THE SIZE OF THE PARCEL AND TO ALLOW FOR 

EXCEPTIONS BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION WHEN CERTAIN FINDINGS CAN BE 
MADE. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DelL ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

WHEREAS staff has been contacted a number of times over the past few years regarding the 
construction of detached accessory structures and in particular the height limitation of fifteen 
(15) feet in the City's residential zones; and 

WHEREAS detached accessory buildings are allowed in residential zones, provided they are 
accessory to and subordinate to the principal use of the site and serves a purpose which does 
not change the character of the principal residential use; and 

WHEREAS many jurisdictions allow greater heights on larger parcels and exception provisions 

without the need for a variance; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission is recommending the amendments regarding building 

heights and size limitations to Section 17.30.020, Accessory Uses and Buildings of the Rio Dell 

Municipal Code (RDMC); and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission recommends that the allowable height of detached 
accessory structures on lots less than 20,000 square feet in size be limited to fifteen (15) feet; 

and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission recommends that the allowable height of detached 
accessory structures on lots greater than 20,000 square feet in size be limited to twenty (20) 

feet; and 

AccesSOl)l Structures Ordinance No, 347·2016 August ,n« 

ATTACHMENT 96 



WHEREAS the Planning Commission recommends that the allowable area of detached 
accessory structures on lots less than 20,000 square feet in size be limited to 1,000 square feet; 
and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission recommends that the allowable area of detached 
accessory structures on lots greater than 20,000 square feet in size be limited to 1,500 square 

feet; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission also recommends exception provisions to allow for greater 
heights and larger sizes based on specific findings; and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance with 
Sections 65350 - 65362 of the California Government Code; and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance with 
Section 17.35.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that 
the proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any 
implementation programs that may be affected; and 

WHEREAS the proposed amendment has been processed in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality Act 

(CEQA); and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell does 
hereby ordain as follows: 

Section 1. Section 17.30.020(2) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is amended to read in as 

follows: 

17.30.020 Accessory Uses and Buildings 

(1) A use legally permitted in the zone that is accessory to and subordinate to the principal use 
of the site and serves a purpose which does not change the character of the principal use. 

Accessory uses, as defined herein, shall be permitted as appurtenant to any permitted use, 
without the necessity of securing a use permit, unless particularly provided in this chapter; 
provided, that no accessory use shall be conducted on any property in any urban residential, 
suburban residential or suburban zone unless and until the main building is erected and 
occupied, or until a use permit is secured. lOrd. 252 § 6.02, 2004.) 

Accessory Structures Ordinance No. 347·2016 August 2016 
97 



(2) Detached aAccessory buildings in suburban residential, urban residential, residential 
multifamilv and suburban zones shall conform to the following development standards ~ 
elEeeea 13 feet iR keigkt. See "Building Height" definition, Section 17.10.010. 

(a\ Maximum Building Height 

(j) Fifteen feet /15'\ on lots 20.000 square feet or less. 

liiI Twenty feet (20') on lots larger than 20.000 square feet. 

Ib) Maximum Gross Floor Area 

iii 1.000 square feet on lots 20.000 square feet or less. 

Iii) 1.500 square feet on lots larger than 20.000 square feet. 

(3) Exceptions. The Planning Commission may modify by use permit. the height and floor 
area requirements of this part. upon a showing of good cause. For any such modification. the 
Planning Commission shall be required to make the following findings: 

(a) The proposed modification will not adversely affect the-health. peace. comfort. or 
welfare of persons residing or working in the surrounding area; 

(b) The proposed modification will not be materially detrimental to the use. enjoyment. or 
valuation of property of other persons located in the vicinity of the site; and 

Ic) The proposed modification will not jeopardize. endanger. or otherwise constitute a 
menace to the public health. safety. or general welfare. 

(d) In issuing a use permit. the Planning Commission may require such changes or alterations 
to the building as it may deem necessary to satisfy the findings specified in this part. Such 
changes or alterations may indude. but shall not be limited to the following: 

• Building height 
• Building area 
• Setback from property line 
• Screening or landscaping 

(3) Detached accessory buildings may not be located within five feet of any main building, nor 
within five feet of a side line, nor as to encroach on any easement. Minimum yards: side, five 
feet, shall have the street side yard of 20 feet; rear, 10 feet . 

Accessory Structures Ordinance No. 347-2016 August 2Q16 

98 



(4) Detached accessory buildings used as second dwelling units shall not be located within 10 
feet of lot lines or within five feet of an alley. The second dwelling unit shall be subject to the 
minimum yard requirements of the zoning district in which it is located. 

(5) Accessory buildings attached to main buildings shall be structurally a part thereof and shall 
comply with main building yard requirements except as follows: 

(a) A passive solar addition to a main building, as defined herein, may be permitted in the 
required front, rear, or side yard, except street side yard; provided, that no such addition shall 
reduce the distance between the main building and the front or rear property line to less than 
15 feet, nor less than five feet from a side property line, and that no such addition shall occupy 
more than five percent of the area of the front or rear yard, nor more than 10 percent of the 
side yard area. [Amended during 2010 codification; Ord. 252 § 6.21.5, 2004.] 

Section 2. Severability 

If any provision of the ordinance is invalidated by any court of competent jurisdiction, the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected and shall continue in full force and effect. 

Section 3. limitation of Actions 

Any action to challenge the validity or legality of any provision of this ordinance on any grounds 
shall be brought by court action commenced within ninety (90) days of the date of adoption of 
this ordinance. 

Section 4. Effective Date 

This ordinance becomes effective thirty (30) days after the date of its approval and adoption. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Ordinance was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the City of Rio Dell on September 6, 2016 and furthermore the forgoing 
Ordinance was passed, approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Rio Dell, held on the September 20, 2016 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 

Accessory Structures Ordinance No. 347·2016 August 2016 

99 



ATIEST: 

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above 
and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 347-2016 which was passed, 
approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio Dell, held on 
the September 20,2016. 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell 

AccessO/)' Structures Ordinance No. 347-2016 August 2016 

100 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

- 01' lil 

~) DELL 

For Meeting of: September 20,2016 

To: 

From: 

Through: 

Date: 

Subject: 

City Council 

Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director e 
Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

September 16,2016 

Adoption of Ordinance No. 349-2016 amending Chapter 17.40 of the Rio Dell 
Municipal Code (RDMC) to accurately reflect the referenced sections. 

Recommendation: 

That the City Council: 

1. Receive staff's report regarding amending Chapter 17.40 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code 
(RDMC) to accurately renect the referenced sections; and 

2. Open the public hearing, receive public input and deliberate; and 

3. Find that the proposed text amendment is consistent and compatible with the General 
Plan and any implementation programs that may be affected; and 

4. Find that the proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and 

5. Adopt Ordinance No. 349-2016 amending Chapter 17.40 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code 
(RDMC) to accurately reflect the referenced sections; and 

6. Direct the City Clerk, within 15 days after adoption of the Ordinance, to post an adoption 
summary of the Ordinance with the names of those City Council members voting for or 
against, or otherwise voting in at least three (3) public places and to post in the office of 
the City Clerk a certified copy of the full text of the adopted Ordinance pursuant to 
Section 36933(a) of the Califomia Government Code. 

Chapler 17.40 RDMC Council September 20,2016 

101 



Background 

As reported at the Council meeting of September 6,2016, itn late 2014 the City reformatted 
Chapter 17.25 and added a number of new regulations to Chapter 17.30, to the Rio Dell 
Municipal Code (RoMC). In recently reviewing the Enforcement regulations, Chapter 17.40 of 
the RoMC, staff discovered that Section 17.40.030 referred to two Sections that were recodified 
to new section numbers. The two referenced sections, 17.25.030 and 17.25.120 refer to "Adult 
Entertainment" and "Camping". Those sections were recodified to Sections 17.30.030 and 
17 .30.170 respectively. 

There was very little discussion regarding the minor text amendment at both the Planning 
Commission hearing and the Council meeting of September 6, 2016. 

Zone Reclassification Required Findings 

1. The proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any 
implementation programs that may be affected. 

There are no polices in the General Plan which would prohibit amending the zoning regulations 
to accurately refer to the originally intended provisions. 

2. The proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

Based on the nature of the project, staff has determined that the project is Statutorily Exempt 
pursuant to Section 15061 (b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California 
Code of Regulations. Pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines this exemption 
is covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for 
causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there 
is no possibility that the project in question may have a Significant effect on the environment, the 
project is not subject to CEQA. Based on the nature of the proposed amendments, to 
reestablish the original intended numerical sequence of the regulations, staff believes there is 
no evidence to suggest that the minor amendment will have a significant effect on the 
environment. 

Attachments 

Attachment 1: Ordinance No. 349-2016 amending Chapter 17.40 of the Rio Dell Municipal 
Code (RoMC) to accurately reflect the referenced sections. 

Chapter 17.40 ROMe Council September 20,2016 

102 



ORDINANCE NO. 349-2016 

CIIY Of 

~ DELL 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCil OF THE CITY OF RIO DEll AMENDING 
CHAPTER 17.40 OF THE RIO Dell MUNICIPAL CODE (ROMe) TO ACCURATelY 

REflECT REFERENCED SECTIONS WHICH WERE RECENTLY AMENDED. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DelL ORDAINS AS FOlLOWS: 

WHEREAS the City has added a number of new regulations to Chapter 17.30, General Provisions 
and Exception, to the Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROMe) over the past couple of years; and 

WHEREAS based on the added provisions, the numerical section numbers have changed; and 

WHEREAS in recently reviewing the Enforcement Regulations, Chapter 17.40 of the ROMC, staff 

discovered that Section 17.40.030 referred to two Sections that were recodified to new section 

numbers; and 

WHEREAS the two referenced sections, 17.25.030 and 17.25.120 refer to "Adult 

Entertainment" and "Camping". Those sections were recodified to Sections 17.30.030 and 

17.30.170 respectively; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission is now recommending that Section 17.40.030 be amended 
to accurately reflect the new sections numbers; and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance with 
Sections 65350 - 65362 of the California Government Code; and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance with 
Section 17.35.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that 
the proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any 
implementation programs that may be affected; and 

Chapter 17.40 Ordinance No. 349-2016 September 2016 

ATTACHMENl 103 



WHEREAS the proposed amendment has been processed in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEOA); and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell does 
hereby ordain as follows: 

Section 1. Section 17.40.030 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is amended to read in as follows: 

17.40.030 Penalty. 

Notwilhstanding any olher provisions of Ihis litle, including ROMC 17.40.020, any 
person, whelher principal, agenl, employee or olherwise who violales ROMC 
17.25.QaQ 17.30.030 or 17.21i.12Q 17.30.170 shall be guilly of a misdemeanor 
and may be punished as follows: 

(1) By imprisonmenl in Ihe Counly Jail nollo exceed six monlhs; or 

(2) A fine nollo exceed $1,000 for viola lions of ROMC 17.25.QaQ 17.30.030 and 
a fine nollo exceed $500.00 for violations of ROMC 17.21i.12Q 17.30.170; or 

(3) A combinalion of such imprisonmenl and fine. lOrd. 252 § 8.02.5, 2004.] 

Section 2. Severability 

If any provision of the ordinance is invalidated by any court of competent jurisdiction, the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected and shall continue in full force and effect. 

Section 3. limitation of Actions 

Any action to challenge the validity or legality of any provision of this ordinance on any grounds 
shatl be brought by court action commenced within ninety (90) days of the date of adoption of 
this ordinance. 

Section 4. Effective Date 

This ordinance becomes effective thirty (30) days after the date of its approval and adoption. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Ordinance was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the City of Rio Dell on September 6,2016 and furthermore the forgoing 
Ordinance was passed, approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Rio Dell, held on the September 20, 2016 by the following vote: 

Chapter 17.40 Ordinance No. 349-2016 September 2016 

104 



AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

• 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 

ArrEST: 

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above 
and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 349-2016 which was passed, 
approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio Dell, held on 
the September 20, 2016. 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell 

Chapter 17.40 Ordinanca No. 349-2016 September 2016 

105 


